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TREASTRY DEPARTMENT,
April 18, 1826,

Sin: In obedience to a resolution of the House of Representatives
of the 4th instant, ¢¢divecting the Secretary of the Treasury to com-
municate to the House such portion of the pracecdiugs of the Judge of
the Superior Court of West Flovida, acting as Commissioner under
the 9th article of the Treaty of the 22d of February. (1819, as relates
to the rights of certain persons therein named. to the cargoes of the
slave vessels Constitution, Louisa, and Marino ; and that he also com-
municate the amount of the several sums of money, if any, paid to
the said claimants vespectively : the dates of the payments, and the
authority under which they have been made ;™ I have the honor to
transmit copies of the evidence exhibited to the Commissioner in the
cases referred to in the resolution, the reports of the Commissioner,
and the decisions made thereon by this Department. A stutement
Las been prepared by the Register of the Treasury, and is also trans-
mitted, containing the information required by the latter clause of the
resolution.

1 have the honar to te,
With the highest respect,
Your most ob't servant,
RICHARD RUSH.
The Honorable,
Trr SPEAKER
Of the Ilouse of Represenlatives.
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To the Honorable HENRY M. BRECKENRIDGE, Judge of tlw Supcrzor
Court for West Flovida.

The memorial of David Nagle and Antonio Frias, humbly repre-
sents, that, in the year of our Lord cighteen hundred and eighteen,
they were, and had long been, inhabitants of West Florida: That in
\Lw or June of that year. they procured to be shipped from the Hus
vana, righty-two negro shzvcs, on board the schooner Constitution, for
the port “of Pensacuia: That in due time after the departure of the
said schooner from the port of Havana, the said schooner and her
cargo arvived safely in the said port of Pensacola : That on the arrival
of the said schooner as aforesaid, the City of Pensacola, and the Fort
ut the Barrancas were found to be in the possession of the army of the
Cuited States,  And your memorialists further represent, that imme-
diately on the arrival of the said schooner, the said schooner and the
whole of her cargo, amongst which were the said cighty-two negro
slaves, belonging, as aloresaid, to your momnmahds, were seized by
Col. George M. Brooke, commanding oflicer of the United States? force,
and at the time having possession of the Bart rancas. And your me-
morialists further l‘t,px'(.'%t’nh that the said negroes wm'e carricd imme-
diately to the State of Alabawny, and your mcnmm.llxsts have never
Leen able to recover them, or any of them, nor have they ever received
any compensation lor the loss thereof: whercfore they have sustained
damage to the amount of fifty-three thousand three lundred dollars.
Your memorialists therefore pray that your honor will audit and ad-
just the claim set-forth in the premises, according to the ninth article
of the T'reaty of Cession. and the Act of mer(,ss thereupon passed,
March 3d, 1823.  And your memorialists, &c.

DAVID NAGLE,
ANTONIO FRIAS,

The Unrtep STaTES

AxToxto Frras.

To 82 Negro Slaves, lost by the said David Nagle and
Antonio Frias. in consequence of the operations ol
the United States” Army in Florida, in 1818, worth
the sumn of 8650 each, $53,500

To Davin NiGLe and}n

Document A, accompanying.

A ~ecord of pmvnodnnm: m the General Court for he "Territory of
Alabima, in the cuse of the United States, vs. schooner Constitu-
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tion and cargo, and David Nagle and Antonio Frias, vs. eighty-
four negroes. '

For the same reasons as were given by me in the case of Francisco
Bonal, claiming for the loss of the cargo of the schooner Lovisa, 1
amn of opinion that the present claimants are entitled to recover in this
case to the full amount claimed.

$55,300. H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,

Judge Sup. Ct. W, F. and Acting as Commissioner.

United Stiates,
s, ‘
Constitution.

UNITED STATES 0F AMERICA,
Alubama Territory, General Court, July term, 1818.

Be it remembered, that before the honorable the Judges of the Ge.
neral Court in and for the Alabama Territory, comes William Craw-
ford, attorney for the United States of America in and for the sail
territory, and prosecuting. as well on behalt of the United States, as
of George M. Brooke, Esquire, a Colonel in the army of the United
States, gives the court here to understand and be informed, that here-
tofore, to wit : on the ninthday of June, in the year 1818. upon waters
navigable from the sea by vessels of ten or more tons burthen, the said
George M. Brooke, Esquire. scized, as forfeited under the laws of the
United States, a certain schooner or vessel, called Coustitution, of the

urthen of — tons, or thercabouts, together with her tackle, apparel,
and furniture, and the goods and citects found on board of the said
schooner, to wit : one hundred boxes of brown Havanna sugar, and
seventy-five bags of coffee, and. also, at the same time, seized on board
of the said schovuer eighty-four negroes, as subject to such regulations
as the Legislature of the Alabuma Territory has made or make, for
the disposing of the same,

For this, that, after the 10th day of May. in the year 1800, to wit:
between the 1st and the 10th days of June, in the year 1818, the said
schoener oy vessel, called Constitution, being a vessel of the United
States, owned by a citizen or citizens of the United States, to the said
attorney as yet unknown. was employed in carrying on trade, busi-
ness, or traflic, cortrary to the true intent and meaning of the act of
the Congress of the United States. passed on the tenth day of May.
in the year 1800, entitled *» An act in addition to an act entitled an act
to prohibit the carrying on the slave trade from the United States tv
any foreign place or country,” that is to say: was between the 1st and
10th days of June, in the year 1818 aforesaid, employed or made ust
of in the transportation of slaves from one foreign country op place to
another, to wit: was employed or made use of in the transportation ov
varrying of eighty-four negro slaves from the foreign part or place
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of Havana, in the island of Cuba, to the foreign port or place of
Pensacnla, in the province of West Florida, contrary to the form of
said act; whereby, and by force of the said act, the said schoovner or
vessel, called Constitution, together with her tackle, apparel, and fur-
niture, and the said goods and effects, other than slaves, found on board
of the said schooner, became and are forfeited. ‘

And also for this, that alter the 1st day of January, in the year
1808, to wit : between the first and 10th days of June aforesaid, the
said schooner or vessel called Constitution was found in a viver. port,
bay. or harbor, or on the high scas, within the jurisdictional limits of
the United States, or hovering on the coast thereof; having on hoard
some negro, mulatto. or person of color, to wit: having on board the
aforesaid cighty-four negroes, scized as aforesaid, for the purpose of
<elling them as slaves, or with intent to land the same within some
port or piace within the jurisdiction of dhe United States, contrary
10 the prohibitions of the act of the Congress of the United States in
such case made and provided 3 whereby, and by force of the said acts,
the said schooner or vessel. her tackle, apparely and furnituve, and the
said goods and eftects founil on board the same, became, and are for-
feited,

And, also, for this, that after the 20th day of April,in the year 1818,
a citizen, or citizens ol the United States, or some other person or per-
sonsy to the said Attorney as yet unknown, for himself, themselves, or
some other person or persons to the said Attorney also unknown, either
as master, factor, or owner, did build, fit, equip. load, or otherwise
prepare, a ship or vessel in a port or place within the jurisdiction of
the United States, for the purpose of procuring some negro, mulatto,
or person of color, from some foreign kingdom, place, or country, to
be transported to some port or place, to be held, sold, or disposed of
as slaves, or to be held to service or labor contrary to the form of the
act in such case made and provided: and that the said schooner or
vessel, called Constitution, is a ship or vessel that was so fitted out,
equipped, Taden, or otherwise prepared as aforesaid, contrary to the
form of the act in such case made and provided ; whereby, and by
force of the said act, the said schooner or vessel called Constitution,
her tackle, apparel, and furniture.and lading, consisting of the said
100 boxes of brown sugar and 73 bags of coffee, became, and are for-
feited,

And, also, for this, that. after the said 20th day of April, in the
year 1818, to wit: hetween the 1st and 10th days of June, aforesaid,
a certain citizen ov citizens of the United States, or some person or
persons resident within the jurisdiction of the same, to the said Attor-
ney, as yet unknown, did take on board, receive, or transport from
some of the coasts or kingdoms of Africa, or from some other foreign
kingdom, place, or country, to wit: did take on board, receive, or
wansport {rom the port of Havana., a foreign kingdom, place, or
countrry, under the dominion of the King of Spain, a certain negro,
mulatto, or person of color, to wit: eighty-four negroes, seized as
aloresaid, not being an inhabitant or inhabitants, nor held to service
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by the laws of either of the States or T'erritories of the United States,
in a certain ship, vessel boat, or other water-cralt, for the purpose
of holding, sclling, or otherwise disposing of such person or persuns
as a slave or slaves, or to be held to service or fabor, contrary to the
form of the act in such case made and provided: And that the said
schooner or vessel called Constitution, is the ship, hoat, or other water.
cralt in which the said negro, mulatto, or person of color, to wit; the
aforesaid eighty-four negroes was, or were taken on board, received, or
transported as aforesaid, contrary to the form ol the act in such case
made and provided; whereby, and by force of the said act the said
schooner or vessel, called Constitution, her tackle, apparels and fum.
ture, and the goods and effects found on board the same, orthat were
imported in the same voyage, to wit: the said 100 boxes of Lrowy
Havanna sugar, and 75 boxes of coffee, became, and arve, forfeited,
And the said Attorney, who prosccutes as aforesaid, gives the
Court here further to understand and be informed, that the sid
schooner or vessel, called Constitution, together with the said goads
and effects found on board the same, and, also, the said cighty-fogr
negroes, seized as subject to the regulations alvresaid, have been con
veyed, and are now within the Hwits of the Alabama Territory, and
within the jurisdiction of this honerable Court, Whercupon, in con-
sideration of the premises, the said Attorney who prosecutes, as afore.
said, prays that, after due proceedings had, according to law, the
said gchooner Constitution, her tackle, appavel, and furniture, toge.
ther with the said 100 boxes of brown sugar, and 75 bags of coffee,
the said goods and effects found on board the same, may be condemned
as forfeited, and that the proceeds of the sule thercof may be disti
buted accarding to faw, and further prays, that the said cighty-four
negroes may be. and remain, subject to the regulations of the Legis-
Fature of the Alabama "Ferritory, disposing of such negroesin the pre

niises, ‘
WILLIAM CRAWFORD,
: Jllorney of the U. 8. for the Jdlabama Districi,
Filed in Oftice, 7th January, 1819.

The Alabama Terrvitory of the United States General Court of
. said Terrvitory.

The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Ter-
rvitory, grecting : :

You arve hereby cominanded to seize, and into your possession take,
the American schooner called the Constitution, now riding at anchor
at the port of Mobile, together with her tackle, appavel, and furni
ture of said vessel, and likewise the cargn on board of the said vessel;
which said vessel. called the Constitution, her tackle, apparel, and
furniture, and cargo. have been libelled before the General Conrt of
the Alabama Terrvitory, for a violation of the laws of the Uhnited
States, particuiarly of the Revenue laws thercof, And you are herehy
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authorized, empowered, and strictly enjoined, to cite and admonish
all persons having or pretending any right, title, intercst, or claim,
in or to the said vessel called the Constitution, her tackle, apparel,
furniture, and cargo. personally to be and appear before the General
Court of the Alabama Territory, to be holden in the town of St.
Stephen’s, on the first Monday of Januarymext, to’show cause to the
said Court, when in session, if any they have or can, why the said
vessel called the Constitution. her tackle, apparel, furniture, and
cargo, should not be condemned as forfeited to the said United States;
and whatsoever you shall do in the premises you shall duly certify
under your hand and seal, to our said Court, when in session. Wit
ness the Honorable Harry Toulmin, Sezior Judge of the said Court,
the first Monday of July, 1818, and of the sovereignty and indepen-
dence of the United States of America the forty third year.

Attest, F. H. GAINES, b. C. G. C.
Issued 13th July, 1818.
Reccived the 16th July, 1818,
Executed on the said schooner Constitution and cargo, July 16th,

1818,
J. P. KENNEDY, D. o
Alabamae Territory.

/

The Alabama Territory of the United Siates, General Court of
said Territory.,

The President of the United States to the Marshal of said Terri-
tory, greeting :

You are hereby commanded to seize and into your possession take,
the American schooner called the Constitution, now riding at anchor
inthe port of Mobile. together with the tackle, apparel, and furniture,
of said vessel, likewise the cargo on board of said vessel. and cighty-
four negroes, which were found on board said vessel ; which said ves-
sel. called the Constitution, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, and
cargo, as well as the said cighty-four negroes, have been libelled be-
fore the General Court of the Alabama Territory. for a violation of
the laws of the United States, particularly an act, entitled ¢¢ An act
in addition to an act to prohibit the introduction of slaves into any
port ur place, within the jurisdiction of the United States, from and
after the first day of January. in the yecar of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and eight, and to repeal certain parts of the same ;”
and you are hereby authorized, empowered, and strictly enjoined 1o
cite and admonish all persons having or pretending any right, title,
inferest, or claim, in or to the said vessel, her tackle, apparel, or fur-
niture, or cargo and negroes before enumerated, personally to be and
appear before the General Court of the Alabama 'T'ervitory, to Le
holden in the town of §t. Stephen’s. on the first Monday of January

o
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next, to show cause to the said Court, when in session, if any they
have or can. why the said vessel called the Constitution, her tackle,
apparel, and furniture, and cargo, and the said eighty-four negrocs,
should not be condemned as forfeited to the said United States; and
whatsoever you shall do in the premises, you shall duly certify under
your hand and seal unto our said Court when in session.

Witness the honorable Harry Toulmin, Senior Judge of our said
Court, the first Monday of July. 1818, and of the sovereignty and in.
dependence of the United States the forty-third year,

Attest, F. H. GAINES, D. C, G. C.
Issued 15th July, 1818.
FEixecuted, J. P. KENNEDY, D. &,

In the General Court of the Alabama Territory, in Admiralty sitting.

The United States ]
¢S,
The schr. Constitution and e

cargo. ‘ Unto the said Court comes Daniel
T. Walden and Maunsel White, by their Attorney, David Rust, and
claims the said schooner Constitution, mentioned in the said libel of
the United States in this behalf, filed as their own lawful property,
and denying all and singular the allegations in the said libel of the
said United States contained § they aver that the said schooner is
vt forfeited to the United States, for any such cause as is in the said
Lihel alleged, and prays that the same may be restored to him with
costs, &e,

OF the terin of July, in the year of onr Lord one thousand cight hun-
dred and eighteen.

To the Honorable the Judges of the Alabama territory, in Admiral-
1y sitting :

"The libel of Antenio de Frias and David Nagle, all and each of
them subjects of the King of Spain, residing in the city of Havana, in
the Islan of Cuba, a part of the dominions of the King of Spain, most
respectfully alleges. propounds, and states, that your libellants. on
or abont the 16th day of June, one thousand eight hundred and eigh-
teen, did ship. in and on board of a certain American schooner, called
the Constitution, eighty-four negro slaves. to wit: the said Antonio
ve Frias. sixty-nine negro slaves 1 and the said David Nagle, fifteen
negro slaves, the true fawful and hona fide property of your libellants,
to he transported in and on board the said schooner Constitution, to
Pensarola, in the province of West Florida. a part of the king-
dom of Spain, from the said port of Havana, where the said schooner
then was: and both of which places of shipment and delivery, were
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ihen, and now are, provinces, colonics, or dependencies of the king-
dom of Spain aforesaid ; and the aforesaid eighty-four negroes at
Pensacola, were to be delivered to Henry Mitchell and John Innerari-
ty, both inhabitants of Pensacola, and subjects of the King of Spain;
that the said schooner did procced on her said voyage, with the said
negroes on board, with the intention to land and deliver the same at
Pensacola aforesaid, to your libellants consigness aforesaid, accord-
ing to the agreement and undertaking of the master of said schoorer.
That upon the arvival of the said schooner at the port of Pensucola
aloresaid, the same was occupied by the military forces of the United
States, by virtue of certain articles of capitulation, with the authori-
ties and forces of the King of Spain ; that the said schooner, with the
cighty-four negroes on board. were then and there, in the harbor of
Pensacola, illegally and forcibly seized by a military detachment from
the fort Carlos, at the Barrancas, of the United States’ army, under
the command of George M. Brooke, an oflicer of the United States®
army, commanding the said fort ; and the said uegroes were sent in
the said schooner, with a military guard on board, into the port of
Mobile, in the Alabama Territory, in the United States, where the
gaid vessel and the suid negroes now are, in custody. of the marshal of
this honorable court for condemnation,  All which, your libellants ex.
pressly allege is contrary to the law of nations and of the United
States : wherefore, they pray that admiralty process may issue against
the said eighty-four negroes. that the usual monition may issue, and
that they may be decreed to be restored to them with costs, &c. :
DAVID RUST, Procior.

Let admiralty process issue.
HARRY TOULMIN, Judge 4. T.
H. Y. WEBB, J. 4. T.

Issued 29th August, 1818,
F. H. GAINES, D. C. Genl. Ct.

AraBaMa TeErrITORY 0F THE U. S. GENERAY, CoURrT.

The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Territory,
greeting :

Whereas, eighty-four African negroes, found on board the Ameri-
fan schooner called the Constitution, have been libelled in the said
Court for a violation of the laws of the United States, and been seized,
and by you taken into posscssion, as liable to condemnation : and,
whereas, Antonio de Frias and David Nagle, subjects of the King of
Spain, and residing in the city of Havana. in the island of Cuba, a
part of the dominions of the King of Spain, have claimed the eighty-
four African negroes as being their true, lawful, and bova fide pro-
nerty, and praying that the same may be restored ; you are therefuve
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commanded and strictly enjoined to cite and admonish all persons
having. or pretending to have. any interest in the condemnation of the
aforesaid Alrican negroes, to be and appear before the General Court
of the Alabama Ferritory, to be holden in the town of St. Stephen’s, on
the first Monday in January next, to show cause when in session, if
any they can or have. why the aforesaid eighty-four African negroes
should not be restored to the said Antonio de Frias and David Nagle,
And whatsoever you shall do in the premises, you shall duly certity,
under your hand and seal, to our said Court when in session.
Witness the Honorable Harry Toulmin, Esquice, senior Judge of
our said Court, the first Monday in July, in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and eighteen. and of the sovereignty and inde-
pendence of the United States of America the forty-third year.

Issued 29th August, 1818.
ArreEsT~F. H, GAINES, BD. C.G. C.
Advertised.
I. HANES, Murshal.

v TuE GENERAL CouRrT or THE AraBaMa TERRITORY,

\GD
Fhe schooner Constitution, and cargo.

Unto the said Court comes David Nagle, by David Rust, his proc.
tor, and claims the cargo on board the said schooner mentioned in the
saidtlibel of the United States in this behalf filed, as his own lawful pro-
perty, and denying all and singular the allegations in the said libel of
the said United States contained ; they aver that the said eargo is not
forfeited to the United States for any such cause as is in the said libel
alleged, and prays that the same may be restored to him, with costs,

&c. &

The United States } In Jdmiralty sitting:

GENERAL Cotrr oF THE ALABAMA TERRITORY,
July Term, 1818.

VS,
Schooner Constitution and cargo, §c.

Ordered, That Commissions do issue to take depositions in the
Havana, to be directed to Messrs, Geay and Jolin Murdock, and in
Pensarola, to be directed to General Gaines, Colonel King. and Cap-
tain Call, or either of them, and that the said depositions be tuken as
evidence as well in the cases of the United States against the said
vessels and cargo, as in the several libels for restitution, and the ne-
groes on board the said vessels, and that the vessels in these cases be

nited States }
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delivered to the claimants on bond and security to be approved by the
Court, being entered into in the appraised value thercof, conditioned
to have the property forthcoming to abide the judgment of the Court.

Ordered, That Samuel H. Garrow, Lewis Judson, David Files,
John W. Simonton, John Whitehead, and Jotham $. Patton, or any
four of them, David Files being one, Ye accepted as securities to the
‘bond to be given under this ovder, and that Henry D, Merritt, Chris-
topher 8trong Stewart, and Daniel Duval, be appointed appraisers of
the vessels and cargoces aforesaid.

We, Henry D. Merritt, Christopher Strong Stewart, and Daniel
Duval, do selemnly, sincerely, and truly swear, that we will diligently
examine, appraise, and value the schooners Marino, Louisa, and Con-
stitution, and their respective cargoes, which have been scized and
libelled in the General Court of the Alabama Territory. according to
our best skill and judgment, and true returns make. So help us God.

HENRY D. MERRITT,
CHRISTOPHER STRONG STEWART,
DANIEL DUVAL.

Sworn and subscribed to this 14th July, 1818,

ADDIN LEWIS,

JOHN KING, Junr.

ALVAN ROUBESIHIOW,
Standing Commissioners

Valuation of schooner Constitution, appraised by Christopher Strong
Stewart, D, Duval, and Henvy D. Merritt :

Schooner Constitation, including her tackle and apparel, valued at

two thousaiid five hundred dollars, - - $2,500 00

oo boxes of brown Havana sugar, weighing n. 42,156 lbs,
at 7 cents, - - - - - - - 2.950 9¢
75 bags of coffee, W. N. 11,7662 22, - “ - 2,588 52
$8.089 44

Amount of valuation of schooner Constitution and cargo, eight thou-
sand and thirty-nine doilars forty-lour cents, exclusive of duties.
Mobile, 25th July, 1818.
‘ CHRISTOPHER STRONG STEWART,
D. DUVAL,
HENRY D. MERRITT.

I certify that th> duties on the cargo of the schooner Constitution,
H. Peckham, Master, from Havana, and ilic tonnage duty on the
said vessel, have been paid, or secured to be paid. according to law,

Given under my hand at the Custom House, Mobile, this g7th day
of July, 1818.

ADDIN LENVIS, Collector,
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.
Know all men by these presents, that we, Danicl T. Walden, Jy.
tham 8. Patten, John W. Simonton, and Samuel H. Garrow, are held
and firmly bound unto the United States of America in the sum of five
thousand dollars, to be paid to the United States: for the payment of
which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, and each of us,
our, and each of our heirs, executors, and administrators, jointly and
severally, tirmly by these presents ; sealed with our seals, and dategd
this twenty-fifth day of July, in the year of our Lerd one thousand
eight hundred and eighteen, Whereas a libel hath been filed in the
General Court of the Alabama Territory, sitting at St, Stephen’s in
admiralty, on the — day of in the year of our Lord one thou.
sand eight hundred and eighteen, by William Crawford, Attorney of
the United States for the Alabama Territory, on behalf of the said
United States, against a certain schooner or vessel called the Consti-
tution, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, stating and alleging, for the
eeasons and causes specified in said libel, the said schooner or vessel,
her tackle. apparel, and furniture, have been seized and become for-
feited to the use of the United States, and praying that the same may
be condémmned as forfeited to the use of the said United States : and
whercas, the said schooner or'vessel, her tackle, apparel, and furni-
ture, have been attached by the process of the said Court aforesaid. in
pursuance of the said libel, and are now in custody by virtue thereof':
aud, whereas, the said schooner or vessel, her tackle, apparel, and
furnitnre, have been, by order of the Court aforesaid, valued by ap-
praisers appointed by the Court aforesaid, to wit : Henry D. Merritt,
Christopher Strong Stewart, and Daniel Duval, at two thousand five
hundred doilars : and, whereas, the said Court aforesaid hath ordered
the said schooner aforesaid. her tackle, apparel. and furniture, be
bonded at the appraised value thereof, and delivered to the said Daniel
"I, Walden and Maunsel White, who claim the same :  Now, therefore,
the condition of this obligation is such. that if the above bounden
Daniel 'I. Walden, David Files, Jotham S. Patten. John W, Simon-
ton, and Saml. H. Garrow, er cither of them, or their heirs. excecutors,
or administrators, shall pay into the said Court aforesaid., for the use
of the said United States, the sum of two thousand five hundred dol-
lars, being the sum and appraised value aforesaid of the said schooner
Constitution, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, in case the said
schooner. her tackle, apparel, and furniture, shall, by the sentence and
decree of the said Court, he adjudged to be forfeited or condemned to
the use of the said United States, within twenty days after the said
sentence and decree shall be pronounced, and if the said schooner or
vessel, her tackle, apparel. and furniture, shall be acquitted, or if a
decree shall pass in s2id Court in favor of the claimants, then, and in
such case. if the above bounden Daniel "I, Walden, David Files. Jo-
tham 8. Patten, John W, Simonton. and Samuel H. Garrow, or cither
of them, their heirs or administrators. shall, within twenty days after
the sentence and decree shall be pronounced, pay into the said Court
aforesaid, or {0 the officers thereof, respectively, all such costs and
charges as shall, in that case, be taxed and allowed by the said Court
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aforesaid to the said officers thereof ; and if the said claimants shall
in all things abide and perferm such decree as shall'be made by the
Court aforesaid in the said cause, or respecting the premiscs, then this
obligation shall be void ; otherwise, the same shall be and remain in

full force and virtue.
: D. T. WALDEN, [SEAL.]
DAVID FILES, [SEAL] -
JOTHAM L. PATTEN, [srAL]
J. W, SIMUN'TON, [SEAL.]
8. H. GARROW. [sFaAT.]
Sealed and delivered + o
in the presence of
L. JUDSON,
W. Y. LEWIS.

Filed sath Jfuly, 1818.
F. H. GAINES, . C. G. (.

Know all men by these presents, that we, David Files, Jotham §.
Patten, John W. Simonton, and Samuel H. Garvow, are held and
firmly bound unto the United States of America in the sum of eleven
thousand and seventy-cight dollars and eighty-eight cents, to be paid
to the United States, for the payment of which, well and truly to he
made, we bind ourselves, and each of us, ours, and each of our heirs,
cxecutors, and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly, by these.
presents; sealed with our seals, and dated this 25th day of July, in the
vear of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and cighteen, -

Whereas a libel hath been filed in the General Court of the Alabama
Territory, sitting at St. Stephen’s, in admiralty. on the day of

: in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hindred and
eighteen, by William Crawford, attorney for the said United States
for the Alabama territory, on behalf of the said United States, against

~wrertain quantity of sugar and coffee. comprising the cargo of the
schooner Constitution, stating and alleging that. for the reason and
causes specified in the said libel, the sugar and coffee, comprising the
cargo of the said schooner, have been scized and become forfeited to
the use of the said United States, and praying that the same may be.
condemned as forfeited to the use of the said United States: And
whereas the said sugar and coffee have been attached, by the process
of the said conrt aforesaid, in pursuance of said libel, and are now in
custody by virtue thereof';

And whereas the said sugar and coffee hath been. by order of the
court aforesaid, valued by the appraisers appointed by the court afore-
said, to wit: Henry D. Merritt, Daniel Duval, and Christopher
Strong Stewart, at ‘
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And whereas the said court aforesaid hath ordered the said sugur and
eolfee aforesaid, be bonded at the appraised value thereof, and deliver.
ad to Duvid , o his agent, who claiins the same:

Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such that, if the
above bounden David Files, Jotham 8. Patten, John W, Simonton,
and Samuel II. Garrow, or either of them, or their heirs, exccutors, or
administrators, shall pay into the said cowrt atoresaid, for the use of
the United States, the said sum of five thousand five hundred and thir.
ty-nine dollars amd forty-four cents, being the sum and appraised va.
lue aforesaid, of the said sugar and coffee, in case the said sugar and
coffee shail, by the sentence and decree of the court aforesaid, be ad-
judged to be forfeited or condemned to the use of the United States,
within twenty davs afler the senteiice and Jecree shall be pronounced;
and if the said sugar and coffee shall be acquitted, or if a decree shall
pass, in the said convet. infavorof the cluimants, then, and in such case,
if the above bounden David Files, Jotham 8. Patten, Joha W. Simon.
ton. and Samuel H, Gorrow, or either of them. or either of their heirs,
exccutors, or adiainistrators, shall, within twenty days alter the sen.
tence and decree <hiall be pronounced, pay into the said court afore-
said, or to the oflicers thereof, vespectively, all such costs and charges
as shall, in that cuse, be taxed and allowed by the said court aforesaid,
to the said officers thereof 3 and if the said claimants shall, in all things,
abide ant perisrm such decree ag shall be made by the court aforesaid,
in the said cause, or respecting the premises, then this obligation shall
be void, otherwise the same shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

DAVID FILES.
JOTHAM S, PATTEN.
J. W. SIMONTON.
S. H. GARROW.

Sealed and delivered in presence of
L. JUDSON,
W. Y. LEWIS.
Filed 50th July, 1818,
¥. H. GAINES, D.C. G. C.

Alabama Territory of the United Siates.—The President of the United
States to t e Murshal of the suid Lervitory, greeting:

‘Whereas, at a general court, holden for said territory, in the town of
St. Stephen’s, on the first Monday in July, 1818, it was ordered that
the vessel Marine, and cargo. the schooner Louisa and cargo. and the
Constitution and cargo. should he delivered to the claimants of the
same, on their entering into bond, in the appraised value thereof, with
Samuel H. Garvow, Lewis Juason, Jolm W, Simonton, David Files,
John Whitehead, and Jotham S. Patten. or any four of them. David
Files being one, as securities for the {orthcoming of the vessels and car-
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goes aforesaid, to abide the order and decree of the said court. And
whereas an appraiscment, on oath, of the valuation of the Constitution
and cargo, has been filed, and bond, in double the amount thereof, con-
ditinned as aforesaid, has been entered into, and filed in the clerk's ofs
fice of said court, with David Files, Jotham 8. Patten, J. W. Simon-
ton, and 8. H. Garrow, as securitics ; you are therefore required and
strictly commanded that you deliver the said vessel, called the Consti-
tution, her tackle, apparel, and furnitare, unto Danicl I, Walden, who
has claimed the same, and that you deliver unto David Nagle the car-
go on boardthe said vessel, consisting of 100 boxes brown Havana sus
gar, weighing, nett, 42,156 Ibs. and 735 bags of coffee, weighing, nett,
11,766 1bs. which said vesscl, called the Constitution, and cargo afore-
said, by our writ, you have seized, and taken into your passession, for
aviolation of the laws of the United States, as by their libel we are
given to understand; and whatsvever you shall do in the premises,
vou shall certify to our judges of saiil court, in the town of St. Ste-
phen’s, on the first Moniday of Junuary next,

Witness, the Hon, Harry Toulmin, Lisq. senior Judge of said court,
the first Monday of July, 1818, und +3d year of American indepen-
dence,  Issued S0th July, 1818,

Attest F. H. GAINES, b. ¢, ¢, C.

Received the 8l August, 1818.
. P KENNEDY, .44

Habama Territory of the United Stutes,
General Court, Juty Term, }

Grdeved, on the agreement of parties. that the one hundred and se-
ven negraes found on board the vessel Marino, the schooner Louisa,
and Constitution, and libelled in this court, be placed in the possession
' baiaes Caller, Benjamin 8. Sticots and David Files, on their enter-
ing into bond, in such amount, and with such security, as may be ap-
peoved and agreed upon by the parties, conditioned that they have the
salld negroes forthcoming. to abide the order and decree of this court,

Wieieas one hundred and seven Alfrican negioes have been hrought
within the jurisdiction, and have been placed in the custody ot this
“ourty as being lable to [orfeiture under the Jaws of the United States.
ind whereas certain persofis have claimed the said negroes, and deny
heir liability to forfeiture as aforesaid,  And whereas the said causes,
inreference to the liability’ of said negroes to forfeiture, could not be
tecided at July term, 1818, of the Alubama gencral court, sittingin ad-
: miralty, it was agreed, by and with the advice and consent of the said
ety and of all the pevsons interested, either in the seizure of said
inegroes aforesaid, of those claiming restitution of the same, that the
il negroes be delivered to some responsible persons, to be admitted,
iy the said court aforesaid, for safe-keeping, until the court aforesaid,
e ieir cticers, shall demani the same, the said negroes are to be re-

3



turned into the custody of the court aforesaid, {o abide their decision in
the premises ; all casualties in veference to the snid negroes te be from
the liability of the said respousible persons, ‘

Whereupon, Jawes Caller, David Iiles, and Benjamin S, Smoot,
:ame into court, being the persons agreed upon by the parties interest.
ed aforesaid, by consent of the court aforesaid, and stipulated as well
to all the purties interested astothe court aforesaid, to take possession
of the negroes atoresaid, to —— them well, and return them iuto the
court when demanded by the said court, ——— from all expense to any
party concerned, under the penajty of one hundred thousand dollars,
to be levied of their goods and chattels, lands and tenements, if they
should make default in the stipulations herein mentioned.

Jabama Territory of the Uniled States,
© Generel Cowrt of said Terrvitory.

‘Fhe President of the United States o the Marshal of said Territory,
grecling: :
You are hereby authorized and required {o deliver {o James Callen,
David Files, and Benjamin 8. Smoot, one hundred and seven African
negroes, found on bouard the schooner Marino, Louisa, and Constitu-
tion, now riding at anchor in the port of Mobile, which said negroes
you have seized and taken in your possession, by our order, fora viola-
tion of the Inws of the United States, particularly an act, entitled ¢ An
act in addition to an act to prohibit the introduction of slaves into any
port or place within the jurisdiction of the United States, from andat-
ter the first day of January, in the year of our Lord one thousand
cight hundred and eight, and to repeal certain parts of the same:”
and whatsoever vou shall do in the premises, you shall certify fo our
said court, to be holden in the town of St. Stephen’s, on the first Mon-
day of.January next, »
Witness, the Hon, Harry Toulmin, Senior Judge of said Court, the
first Monday of July, A, D. 1818, and of the sovercignty and inde-
pendence of the United States of America the forty-third year. 13tk

~fuly, 1818. .
Attest, F. H. GAINES, 0. C GG

District Court of the United Siates for the District of Habama, Februe- -
‘ ry Term, 1821,
UNI1TED STATES
_ V8
Schooner Constitution & Cargo & Slaves. )
In this case, Isracl Pickens, Esq, filed the petition or szgpplcmcmai
libel of Curtis Lewis, as captor, and informed, viz:
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State of Alabama.

Curtis Lewis being sworn, deposes and says, that, on the 6th July,
1818, he presented William Crawford, Esq. attorney* for the United
States, a copy of the seizure of the schooner Constitution, of New
York, her cargo, and eighty-three African negroes on board the same.
He farther deposes and says, that the said Attorney asked him, the said
Lewis, on what section or sections of the slave acthe wounld have the
libel founded ; to which the deponent answered, ¢ you can bost judge."”

CURTIS LEWIS.

Subscribed, and sworn to, before me, this 27th February, 1821,
ROBERT CARR T.ANE, O/l lab, Dist.

et B———r

The Usyrrn StaTes oF AMERICS,
Alabama District.

- District Court, Mobile, I'ebruary Term, 1821.

And now befere the Honorable Court, sitting in admiralty, comes
Curtis Lewis, of the Town of Mobile, in said District, being at the
time hereinafter mentioned, the Inspector of the port and District of
Mobile, and Commander of the Revenue Boat of the said port and
Districi, who claims and prosecutes as well in behalf of himself as of'
his crew on beard of said boat, and gives the Court te understand and
be informed, that heretofore, to wit: on the 29th day of Juns, 1818,
the said Lewis did command, as master, the boat aforesaid : that the
boat was a commissioned vessel of the United States: that hie, the
said Lewis, commanding as aforesaid, and with the said vessel, and
said crew on board thereof, on the day and vear aforesaid, at sea. to
wit: near Mobile Point, and within the jurisdiction of the United
States, and of the said District of Mobile, did seize and take as for-
{eited, under the laws of the United States, a certain schosner-er-ves-
sel called Constitution, of tons burthen, together with her tackle,
apparel. and the cargo and effects on hoard of said schoeoner, to wit:
ene hundred boxes of brown Havana sugar, and seventy.five bags of
coffee; and also, seized on board of said vessel, eighty-four African
negro slaves, subject to such regulations as the Legislature of the
Territory, now State, of Alabama, had provided: And the saiil Lewis
did then and there bring the said schooner, taken and seized as afore-
said, into the said Port of Mobile, whereof due report was made to
the Collector of the said Yort, and also to the District Attorney of the
United States for the District: And the said Lewis, in behalf of him-
self and his crew aloresaid, further propounds and declarves, that the
said schooner Constitution was. at the time of the seizurc aforesaid,
employed in carrying on trade. business, or traffic, contrary to the
true intent and meaning of the act of Congress passed in the year
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1800, entitled, ¢ An Act in addition to the Act entitled an act to pro-
hibit the carrying on the slave trade from the United States to any
foreizn place or country :** that the said schooner was owned. at the
time oi the seizure, by a citizen or citizens of the United States. to
the said Lewis unknown, and was then and there employed in carry-
ing the said cighty-ionr negro slaves from the foreign place of Hava-
na, in the Island of Cuba. to the other foreign place of Pensacola, in
West Florida: and that the said Curtis Lewis. also in behalf of his
said crew, propounds and declares, that the said schooner Constitution
atter 22d Muarch, 1794, to wit, on the — day of . 1818, was pre-
pared within the portof New Ouvleans. within the United States, by
certain persons who were citizens of the United States, or persons
therein residing, to the said Lewis unknown, as master or factor of
said schooner, and was caused by the said persens to sail frem the said
port of New CGrlrang, for the purpose of carrying on trade or tradic
in slaves to a foreign countey, to wit: to [lavana, in the Island of
Cuba, and at the tiine of the scizure aforesaid, to wit: on the said 26th
day of June, 1818, the said schaoner was employed in carrying trade
and traflic in slaves, contrary to the true intent and meaning of an
act of Congress entitled « An Actto prohibit the carrying on the slave
trade from the United States to any foreign place or country.’” passed
the 22d March, 1794, and the other acts of Congress prohibiting the
slave trade : And the said Curtis also, for himsclf and crew aforesaid,
further propounds that the said schooner Constitution, at the time of
the said seizure, made as aforesaid, was found, to wit: en the said
29th of Fune, 1818, on the high seas. within the jurisdictional limits
of the United States. and of the District of Alabama, having on board
eighty-four negrocs. for the purpose of selling them as slaves, or with
intent to land them in the United States, contrary to the prohibition of
the Act of Congress in such case, passed on the 2d March, 1807, and
was on the said 29th June, 1818, when secized, a vessel of the United
States, and the Revenue Boat was then an armed vessel of the United
States, and on a cruize.

All which premises arc and were true, public, and notorious, of
which true proof being made. the said Lewis prays the usual process
of monition of this Honorable Court in this behalf to be made, and that
all persons entitled in said schooner, tackle, apparel, farniture. goods,
and effects, found on board, to be cited to appear and answer the pre-
mises, and that all due proceedings be had. that the said schooner, her
tackle. apparel, and furniture, and geads found on hoard, and effects,
may, for the causes appearing. and others not mentioned and appear-
ing, be condemned as forleited, and adjudged, &c.

CURTIS LEWIS.
By Isracl Pickens, AtPy.

Filed 24th February, 1821,
R. C. LANE, Clerk.
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Us1TED STATES OF AMERICA,
Alabama District.

At the District Court for the said Alabama District, at the Febra-
ary Term, 1821, holden at Mobile, comes Addin Lewis, the Collector
of the Customs in and for the port of Mobile, in said District. and
respectfully prefers his claim under the laws of the United States. and
of the Tevritory and State of Alabama, in and to the proportional part
of 84 negroes. taken on board the schooner Constitution: 19 negroes
taken on board the Marino, and 6 negroes taken board the Louisa.

All of which negroes were seized and brought into the said port on
or 2bout the 29th day of June. 1818, as liable to forfeiture for violata
ing the laws of the United Statey prohibiting the slave trade, and the
importation of slaves,

And the said Lewis gives the Court here to understand and be in-
formed, that. atthe time of the seizure and bringing into port of the
said negroes. as aforesaid, he was and still is the Collector of the said
port. and that, by the laws of the United States and of this Territory,
now State, the suid Lewis was, and is entitled, if there be no informer,
to one-half, and if there be one informer op prosecutor, to one-fourth
of the said negroes, taken and brought in as aforesaid, contrary to
the said laws of the United. States, and that the said Lewis gave due
information to the District Attorney of the United States, and to the
Governer of this Territory.

Wherefore the said Lewis, after due form of all the material mat-
ter herein set forth, prays that the said negroes may be condemned,
according to law. and so disposed of that the said Lewis may obtain:
his proper distribution, &c. &c.

ADDIN LEWIS,
FyJ. Pickens, his Atorney.
Filed g7th February, 1821, '
R. C. LANE, Clerk.

United States, 1
LS. . T R
Schooners Constitution, Louisa, February Term, 1821,
Marino, cargo and slaves,

These cases are continued by consent of the captors and claimants,
agree in the cases of the Mayino and Louisa, the slaves are to be de-
livered to Johin Quinn, he giving bond for the safe-keeping and forth.
coming of the said negroes, agrecably to the order of the Court, for
their gond treatment, and care of their health, in the sum of twelve
thousand dollars, for the slaves imported in the Marino, and four
thousand dollars in the case of the Louisa; and the Court accept of
as sccurities in both the cases, Robertson & Barnwall. F. W, & J.
Armstrong, and Henry V. Chamberlain.
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And in the case of the Constitution and slaves, bonds to the amount
of fifty thousand dollars are to be given, and the Court accept of the
fellowing persons as the securities of Geo. M, Brooke, the person to
whom the slaves are to be bonded—-John F. Everitt, Capt. A. L.
Sands, Lt. Spencer, Richard B, Owen, G. W. Owen, E. Montgom-
ery, A. Hollinger, B. 8. Smoot, Webster & Griswold, Gilbert C. Rus.
sell, and Turner Starke, And it is ordered by the Court, that the
Marshal of this District immediately take all the above negroes intq
possession, until the bonds are regularly given.

The United States’
S$. . )
Schooners Marino, Louisa, Con- June Term, 182+.
stitution, cargocs and slaves,

Continued, by ¢onsent, until January Term, 1822,

United States,
8, January Term, 1822,
Schooner Constitution and cargo. :

And now comes here Danicl T. Walden, by Saml. Acre, his prac-
tor, and claims the schooner Constitution, her tackle, apparel, and fur.
niture, and cargo, and for his claim and answer unta the said libel, he
saith, that the said schooner is his and Maunsel White's bana fide
property : that on or about the — day-of June, in the year 1818, the
said schooner sailed from the port of Havana, in the Island of Cuba,
in the dominions of the King of Spain, bound for the port of Pensa-
cola, in the Province of West Florida, then a port belonging to the
Kingof Spain. This claimant further answering, sheweth, that while
prosccuting the voyage aforesaid, and after the arvival of the said
schooner within the territory and jurisdiction of the King of Spain,
(in the Bay of Pensacola) and while at anchor under the guns of the
Fort of Barrancas. belonging to the King of Spain aforesaid, and
within seven miles of the Town of Peusucola aforesaid, was forcibly
seized and taken by the troops of the United States, between whom and
the King of 8pain there then was, and still is, peace and amity : and by
the commander of said troops sent into thie port of Mobile, withinthe ter-
ritory and jurisdictional limits of the United States; and this claimant,
further answering, saith, that the negroes found on board of said
schooner were brought hy her from the said Island of Cuba, in the
dominions of the King of Spain aforesaid, consigned to Henry Mit-
chelet and John Inneravity, of Pensacola, subjects of the King of
Spain aforesaid, and with intent to Iand the same in Pensacola afore-
said, and not within any wort or place of the United States, or the
territories thercof: and the claimant further saith, that the cargo of
the said schooner is the bona fide property of Celin Mitchell, of Ha-
vana. a subject of the King of Spain. and residing in the Island of
Cuba. and that neither the same, nov the said vessel, is forfeited under
any of the laws of the United States,  Whepefope, the said David T
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Walden doth claim the said schooner, her tackle, apparel, and furni-
ture, as the property of this claimant, and Maunsel White, hegeinbe-
fore mentioned, and the cargo thereof, as the property of Colin Mitchell,
of the City of Havana, a subject of the King of Spain atoresaid, and
prays that the same may be vestored, and that he may have his costs
in this matter sustained, and his damages sustained by the seizure and
detention of the said schooner, so unluwfully made, to him decreed.
: SAML. ACRE,

Proctor for Claimants.

STATE OF ATABAMA,
County of HMobile.

Personally appeared before me, Edward Hall, a Justice of the
Peace, in and for the county of Mobile, Daniel 'T, Walden, and made
oath that the facts sct forth in the foregoing declaration, are just and
true,

DANIEL T. WALDEN.

Sworn and subscribed before me this 12th day of January, 1822.
EDWARD HALL, J. P.

Filed 12th January, 18¢2. R. C. LANE,

SMonday, Janvary 1410, 1822,

s,
The schr, Constitution and cargo.

Antonio de Frias & David Nagle }

The United States - }

08,
Eighty-four Negroes,

1t is admitted by the Attorney for the captors as well as for the
claimants, that the Louisa and Constitution cleared out from New QOr-
leans, and the Marino from Mobile, all for the port of Havana ; and
that they were American vessels, with American registers,

That the Louisa and Constitution were cleared from the latter port.
for New Orleans, and the Merino for Mobile, at the different periods
mentioned in the commission sent to Havana, viz : the Merino on the
2d of Junc, 1818 ; the Constitution on or about the 18th of June,
1818 ; and the Louisa on the 10th of June, 1818 ; and were captured
at the different periods mentioned in the libels.

‘That the different vessels had on board the number of slaves men-
tioned in the libels, at tho time of capture. The Marino was captured
within half a mile of the Barrancas, inside of the bar, in the harbor of
Pensacola, by the United States Ketch Surprise, Captain McKeever.
The Louisa was captured outside the bar, at Pensacola ; wasstanding
in, hut hove to. The Constitution was captured under the guns ot
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~ Fort Barrancas, within the bar, by Col. George M. Brooke, of the
United, States army.

That Pensacola was at the time, in the possession of the American
iroops, under the command of General Jackson. and that the Ameri.
can flag was flying at the time. ‘That the Constitution was boarded
‘off Mobile Point, on her way to Mobile, by Curtis Lewis, commander
of the Revenue Boat. That at the time he boarded her. Captain Sans
was on board, as agent for the captors arrival, he (C. Lewis) remain-
ed on board until she arrived in port, and reported her to the Collee-
{or of the port, as being captured by him. "T'hat he reported the
same to the District Attorney, but not until Col. Brooke had re-
ported her as captured by him. That My, Walden enteréd the
cargo at the Custom House, and was supercargo of the Constitu-
tion. That the libellants for restitution, and claimants. offered as
evidence the returns of the commission sent to Havana, which was ad-
mitted, subject to the exception of its being issued und signed by a de.
puty clerk, in all the cases, as well the vessels and cargoes as the
slaves, and libels for restitution.- "T'hat the conunission was opened
inopen convt 5 that Mr. Vincent Gray is a merchant in the Havana;
that he was a commercial agent, and the person and persons intended
for the commission to issue to; that the cargo of the Merino was on
board, and that the register of the vessel was in the nane of William
H. Robertson and Asobel Gross. v

That William H. Robertson entered the cargo at the Custom
House, and bouded the same, :

That the register of the Louisa was in the name of Samuel Paxton.

Antonio Fuche being sworn, saith. that he lived under the govern-
ment of Spain, from the time of the arrival of O-Riley, until the coun-
try was taken possession of by the Americans,

That he knows that slavery is permitted in Spain ; but does not
know whether it is by any particulur vrdinance, or whether it is by
custom,

Don Miguel Esclave being sworn, says that slavery is permitted in
the Island of Cuba; but does not kuow wiether it is by any particular
ovdinance or by customn.

Alabama Territory of the United States General Court,

Thé'President of the United States to Messrs, Gray and John Mus-
doch, Esq., greeting :

"Know ye, that we, reposing especial trust and confidence in your
fidelity and prudent circumspection. do hereby anthorize and cimpower
you, that at such time and place as you may appoint, you carcfully
and diligently examine, agreesbly to the annexed interrogatories, such
persons, they being first cautioned and sworn or aflivmed, to tell the
whole truth, as ¥ou may call befure you for thut purpose s and such
examinations and depositions by you tuken, you are to send sealed.
and under your seals, to the Honorable the Judge of the General
Ceurt of the said territory, at the Court to be holden on the first Mon
day in Januvary noxt. together with this wriz,
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Witness the Honorable Harry Toulmin, Senior Judge of our said
Court, the first Monday in July, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and cighteen, and the forty-third year of the sovercign-
ty and independence of the United States of America.

Issued 50ih July, 1818.

F. H. GAINES, D. C. Gen. Court.
Interrogatorics to be administered to witnesses, in behalf of the
claimants and libellers, in the following cases, to wit:

ddlabama General Court in Admirally.
The United States, The United States, ¢ The United States.

vS. 8. s
Schr. Marino and Schr. Louisa and Schr, Constitution
cargo, cargo. - aud cargo.
Henry -
Diego Crispo, ] Joseph Noriago, | David Nagle,
Francis Barros, U Francis Bonal, f Antonio Frias,
Ignatius s s 3 s.
Vs, 8ix Negroes. I Eighty-two negroes
Nineteeen Negroes, J e :

INTERROGATORYES,

Ist. You do know David Nagle, Antonio Frins, Diego Crispe,
Francis Bonal. Ignatius Balderos, Joseph Noriago., Francis Barrios,
and Henry Mitchelet, parties in the above suits, or any of them ?

2d. Where do they generally reside? Ave they or are they not,
subjects of his Catholic Majesty the King of Spaiu, or merchants or
persons residing within his deminions 7 ‘

5d, Have you or have you not, any knowledge of the said David
Nagle having shipped, in the month of June, 1818. at the port of Ha-
vana. fifteen Alrican negroes on board the Constitution, to be trans-
ported to the port of Pensacola ? Were the said negroes the property
of the said David Nagle, and bona fide ?

4th. Have you any knowledge of the said Antonio Frias having
shipped on board the schooner Constitution sixty-nine negroes, at
Havana aforesaid, ai the time aforesaid. to be delivered at Pensacola
aforesaid 3 and were they the real and bona fide property of the said
Frias?

5th. Have you any knowledge of the said Francis Banal, or the
said Joseph Noriago. or some person or persons, having shipped, on
board the American schooner Louisa, some time in the said month of
Tune, at the port of Havana aforesaid. the said Francis Bonal four
negroes, and the said Joseph Noriago two negroes : and were they
the true and bona fide property of the said Bonal and Noviago ?

6th, Have you any knowledge of the said Mitchelet, the said Diego
Crispo, Francis Barrios, and Ignatius Balderos, or some person or

1
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persons further, having, some time in the said month of June, at Ha-
vana aforesaid, shipped on beard the American schouner Muring,
nineteen negroes : that is to say, the said Diego Crispo, twelve ne-
groes; the said Henry Mitchelet, four negroes; the said Francis
Barrios, one negro; and the said Ignatius Balderos, two negroes, to
be transported and delivered at the port of Pensacola : and were the
said negroes severally, the property of the persons above named?

7th. Were the negroes mentioned in the several foregoing interre.
gatories, purchased by the several persons thevein set forth, as owned
in Havana. to your knowledge, or by some person further, and in pur-
suance of their orders and instructions; and were they so shipped as
to be delivered to them or to their order, at Pensacola?

8th. Have you any knowledge of the voyage upon which the afore.
mentioned schooners Constitution, Louisa, and Marino sailed, from
the port of Havana? Was it not understood between the master or
persons having charge of the said vessels, the said owners or shippers,
that they should call or touch at the port of Vensacola aforesaid, and
land and deliver the said negroes to the said owners or their order;

" and was there not an agreement to that effect? :

9th. Whether, at the time of the aforesaid shipment of negroes took
place, a preference was not given to shipping under the American
flag to the Spanish, in conserquence of the great danger apprehended
of capture, by the insurgent privateers ?

10th. Whether at the time the said schooner sailed from the port
of Havana, it was not known that the American Congress had passed
an act, in addition to an act to prohibit the introduction of slaves into
any port or place within the jurisdiction of the United States, from
and after the first day of January, in the year of our Lord one thou.
sand eight hundred and eight, and to repeal certain parts of the same;
passed the 20th of April, 1818—or whether, at the said time, the said
schooner aforesaid, sailed from the port of Havana?

11th. Do you or do you not know any thing in reference to the
cargoes shipped on board either of the said schooners Louisa, Marino,
and Constitution, at the port of Havana, at the time aforesaid, to wit:
during the month of June last, and to whom did they belong, and in
what proportion, and for what ports were they shipped, and by whom

- were they shipped.

12th. Do you or do you not know any thing in reference to the
schooners aforesaid, the negroes on board, and their respective car-
goes, that will be for the benefit either of the United States, the cap-
tors, claimants, or libellants ? if so declare it ?

‘ F. II. GAINES, B.C. G. C.
Issued soth July, 1818.

-

Mabama Territory of the United States:

I, Francis H. Gaines, Deputy Clerk of the General Court of said
Territory, do certify, that the foregoing pages, numbered 1, 2, 8, 4.
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5, 6, contain a true copy of the interrogatories now on file in the
Clerk’s Office of the said Court,

In testimony whereof 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
private seal, having scal of office -at St. Stephen’s, on the 30th July,
1818, and of the Independence of the United States the 458d year.

F. H. GAINES, D. C. G. C,

Depositions of witnesses produced, sworn, and examined, on the an-
nexed interrogatories, on the thirteenth day of October, in the year
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and cighteen, hy virtue of
a commission issued out of the General Court of the Alabama Ter-
ritory, to us directed, for the examination of witnesses in a certain
cause pending there between the United States, plaintifty, and the

- Coustitution, and those claiming her cargo, and African slaves on
board, defendants, on the part of the defendants, to wit:

Bon Francisco Alvarez, of the city of Havana, Despatch Clerk in
the House of Don Antonio de Frias, he, the said Frias, being in EKu-
rope, and his brother and attorney, Don Nicholas, being in the inte-
rior, being produced, sworn, and cxamined, on behalf of the defen-
dants, on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and declare
asfollows:

1st. To the first interrogatory he saith, that he knows Don David
Nagle and Don Antouio de Frias, having lived as Clerk in the house
of the latter for upwards of cight years, butis not acquainted with the
other parties named in this interrogatory.

2d. To the sccond interrogatory he saith., that Don David Nagle
and Don Antonio de Frias are resident merchants of this city, and
subjects of his Catholic Majesty.

5d. To the thivd interrogatory he saith, that Don David Nagle, or
some person for him, did ship a number of African negroes on board
the American schooner Constitution, bound to Pensacola, and a part
thereof, twelve in number, were purchased at the barancon of Don
Antanio de Frias, and he rememhers to have seen a clerk of the said
Nagle, a Mr. Mitchell, in the office of the Sceretary of this Govern-
ment, obtaining a passport for said negroes, but as to the number he
knoweth not.

4th, Lo this interrogatory he saith, that, to his knowledge, there
were shipped on board the American schooner Constitution, by the
house of Antonio de Frias, in the month of June last, sixty-nine Afri-
can negroes, as he understood, for account, as expressed in the letter
and passport hereto annexed, marked A B, which negroes were actual-
ly imported by the said Antonio de Frias from the coast of Africa, in
the schooner called the Volorado, and reshipped (rom the barancon
No. 15 of the said Frias, he, the deponent, having obtained the pass-
port for the reshipment of the said negroes from the Captain Gencral,
for account of the said Frias.

5th. T'o the fifth interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.
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6th. To the sixthinterrogatory he saith, that hie hias no knowledge
nf the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

7th, To the seventh intervogatory he saith, that twelve of the ne-
eroes mentioned in the passport obtained frowm the Captain General, in
the name ot David Nagle, hereto annexed, marked C, were purchased
from barracon No, 15 of Don Antonio de Frias, and shipped on board
said schooner Constitution, with sixty-nine shipped {rom said harra-
con on hoard said schooner Constitntion, by said Frias, as expressed
in his letter hereto annexed, marked A.

gth. Vo the eighth interrogatory he saith, that the Captain of the
Coanstitution received the alorementioned sixty-nine African negroes,
as well as the others shipped on the said vessel, on the express condi-
tion, as he understood, that he would land them in Pensacola, at
which port he was to touch, on his voyage to New Orleans.

oth, To the ninth interrogatory he saith, that, as insurgent priva-
teers were ahmost constantly off this port, Matanzas. and Mariel, the
preference was nol. only given to the transportation of the negroes to
American vessels from hence, but that no person would risk a negro
on board a Spanish vessel, for any place, except a vessel of war,

10th. To the tenth futervogatory. he-saith, that he never heard of
the act of Congress ot the 20th of April, 1818, but that he had under-
stood, for some years past, that neither African, nor any other slaves,
could be introduced into the United States. or into the territories
thercof, under any circumstances, and it was not until the 26th day of
June last past, some days afier the departure of the schooner Consti-
tution, that information was veceived heve, by the arrival of the
schooner Washington. a flug of truce, having troops on boavd from
Pensacola, of the capture of Pensucola, by the troops under the com-
mand of Gen Jackson.

11th. To thisinterrogotory, he saith, that he has no other know-
ledge of the negroes memtioned in this intervogatory than alveady
stated.

12th. To this interrogatory he saith, thatlie knows no other matter
or thing respecting the African negroes mentioned in the preceding
interrogatories which can be useful to the claimants, deivudants, or to

the United Staics.
FRANCISCO ALVAREZ.
IIncana, 15t Oclober, 1818, ’
VixceyT Guray,
Jonn Mvrnock.

Don Domingo Radrignes, of the city of Havana, clerk. aged twenty-
four years, being produced, sworn, and examined in behall of the ‘de-
fendants on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and de-
clare as follows, viz

1st. Lo the fivst interrogatory he saith, that he knows David Na-
gle. Don Antonio de Frias, Dicgo Crispo, and Ignacio Balderos, but
is not acquainted with the other partics named in this interrogatory.
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ad. To the second interrogatory he saith, that David Nagie, An-
tonio de Frias, and Ignacio Balderos, reside in this city, and he un-
derstands that Diego Crispo resides in Pensacola, and that they are
all subjects of his Catholic Majesty.
8d. Lo the third interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.
ath. Lo the fourth interrogatory he says, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory further than by report-
that the said Krias had, about that time, shipped a parcel of negroes
for one of the Flovidas,
5the To the tilth inter rogatory lie saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrog: atory.
6th. To the sixth interrogatory he s.ulh, ‘that he has knowledge
of the purchase and shipuent of fourteen negroes by Diego Cnspn
and Iguacio Bulderos, on board the schooner “Marino. bound to Pen-
\sau)la s that is to suy. twelve by Diego Crispo, and two by Ignacio
‘Baldoms. and he understood from l)lc"‘() Crispo, that he was about
to purchase four or five negroes for his ‘friend in Pensacola, and ship
thu s.\mc by the Marino.
rthe 'T'o the seventh interrogatory he saith, that he has no other
l\n(mlcdg:c of the purchase of the negroes mentioned in the foregoing
interrogatories than stated in the pw(o(lm‘z, ANSWers,
sth. Lo the eighth interrogatory he saith, that he understood that
the Marino was to enter into the port of Pensacola, and there land
the negroes shipped on board at this port. but as to the other two
schooners meutioned in this interrogatory, he has no knowledge of
their destinatioun,
9th. "T'o the ninth interrogatory he saith, that as insurgent priva-
teers were numerous in those seas, the preference was given to Ame-
rican vessels for the transportation of every species of property, as
nothing was cousidered safe on board of Spanish vessels.
10th, To the tenth interrogatory he saith, that he never heard of’
the act of Congress mentioned in this interrogatory : and it was not
until after the arrival of the schooner Washington, a flag of truce whe
arrived here late in June last past, with troops on board. after the de-
parture of the Marino, that infermation was received of the scizure
and occupancy of Pensacola by the troops under the command of Ge-
neral Juckson.
11th, To the eleventh interrogatory he saith. that he has no other
knowledge of the negroes mentioned in this inter rrogatory than al-
ready stated.
12th To the twelfth iutervogutory hie saith, that he knows no othep
m’ttter or thing respecting the African negroes mentioned in the pre-
ceding interrogutories which can be uscful to the claimants. defen-
dants. orto the United States.
DOMINGO RODRIGUEZ.
Havana. 15th Gctober, 1818.
VINCcENT GRaY,
Jorx Murbock.
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Don Jose Antonio Vidal y Pasqual, of the city of Havana, mei.
chant, being produced, sworn. and examined, in behalf of the defen.
dants on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and declare
as follows, viz:

1st. T the first interrogatory he saith, that he knows all the per-
sons named in this interrogatory, except Henry Mitchellet and Ignacio
Balderos.

ad., Te thesecond interrogatory he saith, that David Nagle and
Antonio de Frias are merchants of this city, and the others mentione(
in this interrogatory kuown to him in Pensacola, and subjects of his
Catholic Majesty,

5d, To the third interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory. .

4th. "o the fourth he saith, that he has no knowledge of the ship-
ment mentioned in this interrogatory, ’

5th, T'o the fifth interrogatory he saith, that he purchased for Jo-
seph Noriago, of Pensacola, two negroes from the Barracon, and
shipped them on board of the American schooner Louisa, under the
care of Francisco Bonal, some time in June last past, for Pensacola,
and understood that there were other negroes shipped on board the
same vessel to Pensacola, but to whom they belonged he knows not,

6th. To the sixth interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

7th. To the seventh interrogutory he saith, that he purchased the
two negroes mentioned by him from Cucuthe, Mangual, & Brothers,
and shipped them for account of Joseph Noriago, of Pensacola.

8th, To the eight interrogatory, he saith. that he has no knowledge
of the voyage of the Constitution nor Marino; but, that, had not the
Louisa been bound to Pensacola, he should not have shipped the ne-

roes, which the captain thereof undertook to deliver in Pensacola.

gth. To the ninth interrogatory, he saith, that at the time the ne-
groes were shipped, it was not safe to ship any property on board of
Spanish vessels, onaccount of the many insurgent privateers in those
seas : consequently, the preference was given to American vessels,

10th. To the tenth interrogatory, he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the act of Congress, mentioned in this interrogatory ; but has
understood for some years past, that no negro slaves could be intro-
duced into the United States, under any circumstances ; and it was not
known here, until some days after the departure of the schr. Louisa,
that the troops under General Jackson. actually occupied Peusacola.

11th. To the cleventh interrogatory. he saith, that he knows no-
thing more respecting the negro cargoes of the vessels mentioned in
this interrogatory, than already stated,
_ 12th, To the twelfth interrogatory, ke saith. that he knows no-
thing more respecting the cargo aforementioned, which can be useful
to the defendants. claimants, or tothe United States.

Huvana, 15th October, 1818.
J. A, VIDAL Y PASQUAL.

VinceENT GRAY.
Joux Mrrpock.
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AA.
Hanaxa, 15 de Junio, 1818,
8iv don HENRIQUE MITCHELET :

Muy Sr. mioy amigo: He tomado la libertad de embarcar abordo
de la Goleta Constitucion, su Capt. Don Henrigue Peckham, 4 la con-
signacion de V. sesenia ¥ nueve negros bosales, y asi mismo he sacado
el pasaporte del escelentisimo Sr, Capitan General como propiedad suya
4 fin de tacilitar la entradaen esa. "L'engo hecha peticion 4 este Sr. In-
tendente General para el paiio de tierra que V. me tiene indicado so-
bre el Escambia y concedido que me sea no tendra dificultad en con-
currir con las miras de V. (con algunas modificaciones) pero trataré
extensumente sobre esta asunto cn otra carta seperada limitandome en
esta & suplicarle ¢l pronto disembarco de los esclavos, y sus amisto-
sas atenciones 4 su descanso alojamicnto en parage sang, vigilancio
de su saludl y alimento que dev indispensablemente consistir por otra
ocasion que deye salir su tuvo, y me repito como siempre su- afectisi-
mo amigo y scrvidor,

Por mi hermano I). AnToNI0,
. NICOLAS DF TRIAS,
A Don HENrrque MITCHELET,
de Comercio de Penzacola.

B.
HABANA, 13 de Juio, de 1818,

Concedo licencia & Don Antonio de Frias de este comercio pa, que
del cargamento de negros besales con que entré vicitamente en esta
puerto procedente de la Costa de Africa, la goleta espaiiola Voledora
pueda hacer 4 Panzacola la remesa de sesenta y nueve de cllos al car-
go de M. Packham para entragarlos & su ducfio M. Henrique Mit-
chelet vecino & aquella plaza, segn. Jo harepresentado en memorial de
oste mes acreditando lo necesario en el asunto.

C.

José Cien Fuegos Jovellonos Caso y Ramirez, cabellero Gran-
Cruz de la real militar orden de S. Hermenigildo, condecorado con
las del ejército Asturiano y tercero de ejeraciones, consejero en el
supremo de la guerra, teniente general de los reales ejércitos, gober-
nador dela plaza de la Habana, capitan general de la Isla de Cuba y
de las dos Floridas, presidente de la real audencia que reside en la
propia Isla, juez de alzadas del tribunal del real consulado de ella,
y presidente de la junta econdmica y de gobierno del mismo, subdela-
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1
gado de la superintendencia de correos, postas. y estafetos, y juez pro-
tector de la real compaiiia de la Habana, y dc la renta de tobacos,
&e, &e. :

Concedo licencia 4 D. David Nagle, para que remita 4 Panzacola
trece negros bosales de la propiedad de Don Juan Inerarity, residente
en dicha plaza.

[sEAL.] ‘ CIEN FUEGOS,
HABANA, 12 de Junie, de 1818,

District af the United Stales,
January Term, 1822.
United Stales ‘l
VS,
Schooner Constitution, ,>
and Cargo. J
David Nagle, 3 o
2 7 n e ]
.&n!ong}sdo Frias L Tucsday, January 17, 1822,
, : ]
Eightuy-four Negroes. J
DECRLE.

It is ordered and decreed that the schooner Constitution, her tackle,
apparel, and furniture, and cargo, found on board at the time of seiz-
ure, be decreed to be forfeited to the United States, and that the dis.
tribution thereof be reserved for the further order of this Court.

It is further ordered that the eighty-four negro slaves be, and remain,
subject to the laws of the State of Alabama, and that the distribution
of said slaves be reserved for the further order of this Court.

From which said decree the claimants prayed for, and obtained, an
appeal to the Supreme Court of the United States.

I, Robert Carr Lane, Clerk of the District Court of the United
States for the Alabama District, at Mobile, do hereby certity that the
above and foregoing thirty-five pages contain a true copy ot the record
and proceedings had in said Court in the case of the United States vs.
Schooner Constitution, and cargo, and David Nagle and Antonio de
Frias vs. Eighty-four Negroes, ‘

Given under my hand and scal of office this twenty-fourth
(sEAL ] day of November, 1823.
ROBERT CARR LANE, Clerk.

i

Io the Honorable Henry S, Breckenridge, Judge of the Superior Courl
' of West Florida.

Your memorialist, Francis Bonal, humbly represents, that, in the

year of our Lord eighteen hundred and ecighteen, your memorialist

was returning from Havana in the schooner Louisa, to I'ensacola.
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the place of residence of your memorialist. That he, your memerial-
ist, had on board the said scliooner. four negroslaves, That. when
your memorialist arrived in the port of Pensucola, he found that pluce,
as well as the Barrancas, occupied by the American army, ueder Gen.
Jackson, but iimmediately under the command of Col. Brooke.  That
he had no sooner arvived, as aforesaid, than the said schooner Louisa
was seized by the United States’ Ketch Surprize. under the coninund
of Lieut. McKeever. who was in the port of Pensacola, co-oper.:tirg
with the said army. That the said schooner. together with her cargo.
amongst which were the said four negro slaves, belonging. as afore-
said. to your memorialist. was taken away. as your memorialist under-
stood and believes, to the State of Alabama.  "Uhat the said four ne-
gro slaves were totally lost to your memorialist. and that he has nevesr
received any compensation therefor.  Your memorialist, thereforo,
prays that your honor will audit and adjust his account for losses as
gset forth in the premises, according to the ninth article of the treaty
of cession, and the act of Congress thereupon. passed 5d March, 1825,

And your memorialist, &e. :
: FRANCISCO BOXNAL.
January 8, 1824.

The United Stales. Dr. | To Francisco Bonal.
To four negro slaves. lost by the said Francisco, in consequence of the
United States® army, in 1818, ut $800 cach, - - $3.200

Document A, -accompanying a record of the preceedings in the General
Court of Alabama. in the case of the United Stutes vs. the Schooner
Louisa and her cargo, and Joseph Noriago and Francisco Bonal, vs.
six Negroes.

- For the same reasons as were given in the case of the cairgo of the
schooner Louisa, I am of opinion that t-e seizure of the negroes, on
board said schooner, was illegal. and that, uncer the 9th article of <h
Florida treaty. the claimant is entitled to compensation to the full
amount claimed,

H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,

Judge Sup. Court ¥, F, and Comnis.

Qabama Territory of the United States—General Courte Special Tern
of saud Court, to be holden on the 4th Mmday of July, 1818.

Before you, the honorable Julges of the General Conrt. in and for
said territory, come the United States of America, by William Craw-
ford, their attorney for said territory, and give the court here to un-

5 . :
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derstand, and be informed, that, on the twenty-first day of June, in
the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and cighteen, the
Awmerican vessel. called the Louisa, having an American register, and
of the burthen of 30 £3 tons, or thereabouts, owned, in whole, by un
American citizen. viz. by Swnuel Paxton. of the city of New Or.
lIeans, and State of Loniciana, merchant, having on board six negroes,
having some short time previously taken on bourd the said negroes, at
the port of Havana. in the Island of Cuba. being a foreign port in
the possession of the King of Spain, with intent to land the same in
the United States, and to hold the same as slaves to service, was
found, seized, and taken possession of. by Isaac MceKeever, Esq. com-
mander of the United States” Keteh, a vessel called the Surprise, on
the high seas, and having on bourd, alsn, a valuable cargo, consisting
of ten pipes of tattia, thirty cases sugar, thivty-three dozen pots of
sweet meats, twenty -five boxes of small herrings, twenty-six baskets
of porter, six buncles of diry goods. six bundles of tabacco. six hoxes
of gin, two quarter casks of wine, two dozen do. sweet meats. three
boxes of wine, four boxes of vermicelli. six barrels of olives, four box-
es (contents net known.) four barrels of white wine, two bags of cof-
fee, seven Lavivls of sugar, one demijohn of anniseed, one barrel of
tamarinds, one busiel of cassave, one bale of dry goods. two boxes su-
gar, one do. of cotive. ship stores. and cther articles s and that the said
vessel, called Louisa. together with her cargo, and the negroes on
! ~rd, have been brought, by the said Isaac McKeever, Iisy. comman-
v ‘t the portof Mobile, in the district of Mobile, and are now in
the puvisdiction of this court, for a violation of an act of Congress. cns
titled + Anact to prohibit the finportation of slaves into any port or
place within the jurisdiction of the United States, from and after the
first day of January, in the year of our Lord onc thousand eight hun-
dred and cight.** particularly for a violation of the seventh section
of said act.  The said United States, by their said attorney, furtber
shew to the judges of this honorable court, that. on or about the tenth
day of June, in the year of our Lord one thousand cight hundred and
‘cighteen, divers citizens of the United States took and received on
board of the Amarivan vessel, called the + Louisa.” owned in whole
by an American citizen, viz. by Samuel Paxton, and transported {from
the Island of Cuba, being a foreign place in the possession of the
King of Spain, six negroes—nat being inhabitunts. nor held to ser-
vice by the laws of eitlier of the States or T'erritories of the United
States, for the parpose of holding the said negroes as slaves : and that
the said vessel, called the Marino, togethier with a valuable cargo. and
the said negroes. was, on or about the twenty-first day of June, in the
year eighteen hundred and eighteen, found. scized, and taken pos-
gession of, on the high seas, by Isaac McKeever, Esq. commander of
the United States® ketch, or vessel, called the Supprise, and that the
said vessel, called the Louisa. together with her cargo, and the said
negroes, have been brought by the said Isaac McKeever, Esq. com-
rmander, &, to the port of Mobile, in the district of Mobile, and within
e jurisdiction of the comrt, for a violation of the laws of the United
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Stales, particolarly for a violation of the fourth section of the act of
Congress, entitled ++ An act in addition to an ¢ Act to prohibit the ne
troduction of slaves into any port or place within the juvisdiction of the
Thited States, from and afier the first day of January, one thousand
eight hundved and eight, aud to repeal certain puris of the swme.”

The saidd United States, by their said attoruey . fuither give the judges
of this hunorable court to understand, and be inoimeit, that, on or
about the 20th day ol April, in the year 1818, divers citizens ot the
United States fitted, equipped, and prepared at, and caused to szi, the
Awmerican vessel, called the Louisa. baving an Awmcrican register,
from the port of New Orleans, within the jurisdiction ot the United
States. for the purpose of procuring negroes from the Island of Cuba,
a foreign plare in the possession of the King of Spain, to be trans-
ported to the port of New Orleans, in the State of Louisiuna, within
the jurisdiction of the United States ;- and that the said vessel, called
the Louisa, together with her cargo, and six negroes, taken on board
the said vessel. at the Island of’ Cuba aforesaid, were. on the 21st day
of June, in the year 1818, found, seized, and taken possession ofy on
the high seas, by Isaac McKeever, Esq. conmander oi the United
States’ ketch. or vessel, called the Sarprise. in pursuance ol insiruc-
tions from the proper oficers of' the United States, and that the said
Isaac McKeever, commander, &c. hath brought the said vesse: Louisa,
together with her cargo and said negroes. into the port of Mobile. in
the district of Mobile, and within the jurisdiction of this court,
for a violation of an act of Congress. entitled -+ An act in addition to
an act to prohibit the introduction of slaves into an, foreign port or
place within the jurisdiction of tae United States. from and aiter the
first duy of January. in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hune
dred and cight, and to vepeal certain parts of the same,  Wherefore,
the said United States pray that a citaution may issue, and that the
gaid vessel, the Louisa. together with her tackle. apparel, and turni-
ture, and also her cargo, may be declared, by a decree of this court,
to be forfeited to the said United States, and may be condemned to be
sold, and the proceeds of such sale may be distributed according to
law.  And the saild United States further pray. that the said six ne-
groes may, in virtue of the acts of Congress, in such case made and
provided, and of the act of the 'Fervitorial Legislature, passed in
pursuance of the acts of Congress, in such cases. bhe declared by
a decree of this court to be forfeited, and may be contemned to be sold,
and the proceeds of such sale be distributed according to taw.

Wii LiIAM CRAWFORD,
Attorney of the United Stales for the Disirict of Mobile.

Joux ErniorT, for captors.

-

Filed 25th June, 1818,
¥. 4. GAINES. D. C. Gen. Court,.
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The Alebama Tervitory of the United Stales, |
General Court of said Territory.

The President of the United States to the Marshal of said Territory,
greeting:

You are hereby commanded to seize. and into your por.ession take,
the Awmerican schooner, called the Louisa, now ricing #. anchor in the
pert of Mobile, together with the tackle, apparcl. and furniture of said
vessel, Hkewise the cargo of the said vessel. consisting of the tollowing
wares, goods, and merchandise. viz: ten pipes of taflia, thirty cases of
sugar, thirty-three dozen pots of sweet meats, twenty five boxes of smalf
herrings. twenty-six biskets of porter. six bundles of dry goods, six
bundles of tabucco, six boxes of gin, two quarter casks of wine, two
dozen of sweetmeats do.. three boxes of wine, four boxes of ver.is
celli. six barrels of olives, four boxes (contents wot known.) toar
barvels of white wine, two bags of coffee, seven burvels of sugur,
on- demijohn of annisced, one barrel o tamarinds, one barrel of
cassave, one bale of dry goods, two hoxes of sugar one of coffee
do. and likewise six negroes, which were found on boari said
vessel: which said vessel, called Louisa, her tackle, apparel, and
furniture, and cargo. az well as the said six negroces, have been libelled
before the General Court of the Tervitory of Alabama, for a viela.
tion of the laws of the United States : and you are hercby authorized,
emypowered, and strictly enjoined, to cite and admonish all per-
sons having. or pretending any vight. title, interest, or claim. in or to
the said vesse] called the Louisa, hier tackle, apparel, and furniture,
and cargn, and slaves, before enumerated. personally to be and ap-
pear before the General Courtof the Alabama "Teprritory, at a special
term of said court, to be holden at Fort Stoddert, in the county of
Baldwin. in said tervitory. on the morning of the fonrth Monday of
July next, to show cause to the said court, when in session. if any they
have, or can. why the said vessel, called the Louisa, her tackle, ap-
parel. and furniture. and cargo, above enumierated, and the said six
negroes, should not be condemned as forfeited to the said United
States.  And whatsoever you shall de in the premises, you shall duly
certify. under your hand and seal, to our said court, when in session.

Witness, the honorable Harry Toulmin. senior Judge of our said
court, the twenty-fifth day of June, in the year of our Lord one thou-
sand eight hundred and eighteen. and of the Sovereignty and Inde-
pendence of the United States of America the {orty-second year.

Issued 25th June, 1818+
Atteﬁtv F' H' G‘\INES, Dc Co G- Gr
Recorded 27th June.

Excecuted 29th,
J. . KENNEDY, D. AL
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General Court of the vilubama Territory, June term, 1818,
The United States }

s,
Schooner Louisa and cargo.

Ordered, that Commissions do issue to take depositions in the
Havana. to be directed to Messes. Gray and John Murdock, and iu
Pensacola, to be directed to General Guines, Colonel King, and Cap-
tain Call, or either of them : and that the said depositions be taken as
evidence, as wellin the case of the United States, against the said ves-
sels and cargoes, as in the several libels for restitution, and the ne-
groes on board the said vessel, that the vessels and cargoes in these ca-
ses, be delivered to the cluimants, on bond and security, to be ap-
proved by thie Court. being entered in the appraised value thereof; con-
ditioned to have the property forthcoming, to abide the judgment of
the Court,

Inthe General Court of the Jlabama Territory, in Admirally sitling.
The United States 3
s,
The Schooner Louisa and cargo. f

Unto the said Court comes Augustine Valvarde, Francis Bonales,
Pedro Rivero Pinalvere. by their attorney, David Rust, and claims
the said cargo mentioned in the libel of the United States, in this be-
half filed, as their own lawful property. all and singular the allega-
tions in the said libel of the said United States contained : they aver
that the said cargo is not forfeited to the United States, for any such
cause as is in the said libel alleged, and prays that the same may be
restored to them with costs.

D. RUST, Proctor.

Jlabama Tervitory of the United States, (Feneral Court.

The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Dis-
trict, Greeting :

Whereas, six African negroes found on board the American schoon-
ur, called the Louisa, have been libelled in the said Court for a viola-
tion of the laws of the United States, and have been seized, and by
you taken into possession, as liable to condemnation : and whereas,
Jose Noriega and Francis Bonal. subjects of the king of Spain. resid-
ing in the town of Pensacola and province of West Florida. a part of
*he dominions of the king of Spain, have claimed the afuresaid negroes,
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as being theirtrue, lawful, and bona fide property, and praying that they
may be restored : you are therefore, commanded, and strictly cujoiy,.
ed. to cite and admonish all persons having and pretending to haye
any interest in the condemnation of the aforesaid six African negrovs,
to be, and appear before the Honorable General Court of Alubamg
"Territory, to be holden on the first Monday in January next, while
in session, if any they have or can, why the aforesaid six African ne.
groes should not be restored to the said Joseph Norviego and Francis
Bonal: and, whatsoever you shall do in the premises, you shall duly
certity, under your hand and seal, to our said Court, when in session,
Witness, the Honorable Harry Toulinin, Esq., senior Judge of wae
said Court. the first Monday in July, in the year of our Lord one
thousand cight hundred and eighteen. and of the Sovervignty and In.
dependence of the United States of America the forty-thivd year,

Fssued 29th August, 1818, ‘
Attest, F. H. GAINES, D. C. G. C.

Advertised.
J. HANES, Marshal.

o the Honorable ihe Judges of the Qlabama Territory, in Admiralty
sitting :

Liger.~The libel of Joseph Noriega and Francis Bonales, all and
each of them subjects of the King of Spain, vesiding in the town of
Pensacola. in the Province of West Florvida, a part of the dominiuns
of the King of Spain. most respectfully alleges, propounds, and states,
that vour libellants, on or about the twelfth day of June one thousand
eight hundred and eighteen, did ship in and on hoard a certain Ameri-
can schooner called the Louisa, six negra slaves, to wit : the said Jo-
seph Noriega two negro slaves, the said Francis Bonales four negro
slaves, the true, Tawful, and bona fide property of your libellants, to be
transported in, and on board said schooner Louisa, to Peunsacola, in the
province of West Florida, from the port of Havanna in the island of
Cuba, a part of the dominions of their Sovereign the King of' Spain,
where the said schooner then was, and both of which places of ship-
ment and delivery were then, and now ave, colonies, proviaces, or de-
pendencies of the Kingdom of Spain aforesaid ¢ that the schooner did
praceed on her said voyage with the said negroes on board, with the
intention to luid and deliver the same at Peusacola, aforesaid. to your
libetlants, according to the undertaking and agreement of the master
of the said schooner ; that, upoen the arvival of the said schooner at
the port of Pensacola, aforesaid, the same was occupied by the mili-
tary forces of the United States, by virtue of certain articles of capitu-
Jation with the authorities and forces of the King of Spain : that the
said schooner, with the said six negroes on board, were then and there,
in the harbor of Pensacola, illegally and forcibly seized and taken, by
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the force and power of the officers and crew and guns of the United
States Ketch Surprise. Lieutenant Isaac McKeever, Commander, and
sent into the port of Mobile, ia the Alabama Territory. in the United
States. where the said vessel and the said negroes now are in custody
of the Marshal of the Court. and proceedings instituted against them
in this honorable Court for condemmation, all which your libellants
expressly allege is contrary to the Law of Nations, and of the United
States.

Wherefore, they pray that Admiralty process may issue against the
said six negroes that the usual monition may issue, and that they may
ke decreed to be restored to them, with costs, &c.

DAVID RUST, Procior.
Lict Admiralty process issue.
HARRY TOULMIN, J. M. T.
H. Y. WEBB, J. 4. 1%
10th July, 1818,

Issued 29th August, 1818,
F. lI. GAINES, D. C. 6. ¢.

GENERAL Covrr,

Ordered, that Samuel . Garrow. Lewis Judson, David Files, John
W. Simonton, John Whitehead, and Jotham 8, Patton, or any four of
them. David Files be one, being accepted as securities to the bonds
t be given under this order, and that ilenry D. Merrit, Christopher
Strong Stewart, and Daniel Duval be appointed as appraisers of the
vesscls and cargoes aforesaid.

Valuation of ihe schooner Louisa, and cargo, appraised by Christopher 8.
Stewart, D. Duval, and Henry B. Merrit.

Schooner Louisa, including her tackle and apparel, valued

at six hundred dollurs, - - - $600 00
15,916 Ibs, of Havanna brown sugar, at 7 cents, - 974 12
884 do. white coffee, - a 18 do. - 159 12
238 do. tallow, - - a 7 do - 16 G6
#72 gallons taflia, - a 50 do. - 586 00
347 do. rum, - a 50 do. - 173 50
60 do. colmenar wine, a 8o do. - 50 40
108 do. claret, 2 casks,at$S30 cach, - 60 00
20 hampers ale, - atS1 50 - - 30 00
1 box of claret, - - - - 4 00
4 hoxes vermicelli, 266 Ibs. at 6 cents, - 15 96

5 bales Spanish tobacco, 541 1bs, a 14 cents, - T T4
24 tubs of fish, damaged, at 1 dollar 50 cents, - 36 00
0 hoxes of sweetieats, at Stl, . - S50 00
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2 cases of platillas, containing 25 pieces each, is 50 pie-

ces, at $54, - - - - ar5 0o

2 bales of checks, containing 96 pieces, at 3, - 288 00
2 bales blue gurrahs, containing 100 picces, at $23 250 00
1 trunk, containing remnants of dry goods, - 25 00
$3,121 50

The above valued exclusive of dutics.
Mos1LE, July 31, 1818,
CHRISTOPHER S. STEWART.
D. DUVAL,
RENRY D.MERRITT,
Filed 11th September, 1818.
F. H. Gaizes, D. C. G. C.

CorrecTOR's OFFICE,
Port of Mobile. Jugust 25, 181¢.

I certify that the tonnage duties on the schooner Louisa, P. River,
master, {rom Havana, and the duties on the merchamlise imported in
said schooner, (which said schooner and merchandise were seized and
libelled in the General Court of the Alabama Territory,) have been
duly paid, or secured te be paid, according to law

Given under my hand, at the Customn House, Mobile, at the
date above written.
ADDIN LEWIS, Collcctor.

Alebama Territory of the United States.
GENERAL COURT.

The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Ter-
ritory, Greeting :

Whereas, at July Term, 1818, of said Court, sitting in admiralty,
it was ordered that the schooner Marino and cargo, the schoover
Louisa and cargo, and the schooner Constitution and cargo, he deliv-
ered to the claimants of the same, on bond being entered in to the ap-
praised value thereof. with Samuel H. Garrow, Lewis Judson, Davil
Files. John W, Simonton. John Whitchead, and Jotham 8. Patten, or
any four of them, David Files being one. as securities, conditioned to
have the property forthcoming. to abide the judgment of the Court:
and whereas, an appraisement on oath. of the valuation of the schooner
Louisa and cargo, has been filed in this Court. and bond in dnpblv
the amount thereof, has been entered into, and filed with David Files
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J. W. Simonton, S. H. Garrow, and Jotham S. Patten, as securities,
conditioned as aforesaid. Now, therefore, you are hereby enjoined,
and strictly commanded, to deliver the aforesaid schooner, called the
Louisa, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, unto Samuel Paxton, who
has claimed the same, and that you deliver to Augustus Valverde,
Francis Bonales, Pedro Rivero, and —— Penalven, the cargo of the
aforesaid schooner Louisa, consisting, as appears from the appraise-
ment, of

1,3916 lbs. Havana brown sugar: 884 do. white coffee; 258 Ibs. tal-
low; 772 gallons tatlia; 347 do. rum ; 63 do. Colmenar wine; 108 do,
claret ; 2 casks, 20 hampers ale; 1 box claret ; 4 boxes vermicelli, 266
Ibs.; 5 bales Spanish tobacco, 541 Ibs, 5 24 tubs of fish, damaged ; s0-
boxes sweetmeats ;s € cases platillas, containing 25 pieces cach, 18 50
picces; 2 bales checks, containing 96 pieces; 2 do. blue gurrahs, con-
taining 100 pieces ; 1 trunk containing remnants of dry goods : which
said vessel,called the Louisa, her tackle. apparels and furniture, with
* the cargo aforesaid, yon have seized and taken into your possession,
by virtue of our writ, for a violation of the laws of the United States,
as by her libel we give to understand.  And whatseever you shall do
in the premises, you shall certify, under your hand and seal, to the
Honorable the Judges of our said Court, at the Court to be holden in
the Town of St. Steplien’s, on the first Monday of Junuary uext.

Witness, the Hon. Harry Toulmin, Esq. Senior Judge of our said
Court, the first Monday of July, in the year of our Lord one thou-
cand cight hundred and cighteen, and of the In(lepem.o;.w of the
United States of America the forty-third.

Tssued the 11th Sept. 1818,
Atlest, F. II. GAINLES,
D. C. Gen. CL.

Delivered, as will appear by the receipt endorsed.
J. P. KENNEDY, D. JL

Kunow all men by these presents, that we, David Files, Joln W,
Simonton, Samuecl . Garrow. and Jotham 8. Patten, arc held and
Sirmly bound unto the United States of America, in the sum of seven
thonusand four hundred and forty-three doilars, to be paid to the said
United States, for the payment of which well and truly to be made,
we bind ourselves and cach ol us, and each of our heirs, executors,
and administrators, jointly and scverally, firmly by these presents.
Sealed with our seals, and dated —— of August, in the ycar of our
Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighteen.

Whereas, a libel has been filed in the General Conrt of the Alaba-
ma Territory, sitting in admiralty on the day of — in
the year of our Lmd one thousand eight hundred and eighteen, by
William Crawford, Esq. Attorney of the United States {or the Ter-
ritory aforesaid, on behalf of the said United States against a certadn

6
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vessel or schooner, called the Louisa, her tackle, apparel, and fur-
niture. and cargo, and six negroes on board, stating and alleging
that, for the reason and causes expressed in the said libel, the said
schooner or vessel, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, cargo and
negroes on bourd, have been seized and become forfeited to the said
United States, and praying that the same may be condemned as fop-
feited to the use of the said United States, And whereas, the said
scheoner or vessel, her tackle. apparel, and furnituve, cargo and
negroes on board, have been attached by the process of the said Court
aforesaid, in pursuance of the livel uloresaid, and are now in custody
by virtue thereof.  And whereas the said schooner or vessel, her
ackle, apparel, and furniture. and cargo, exclusive of the six ne-
groes on board, have beens by order of the said Court aforesaid,
appraised by appiaisers appointed by the said Court aforesaid. to wit,
Christopiier Strong Stewart. Danicl Duval, and Henry D. Merritt,
and which said apgraisers have appraised and valued the said schoon.

“ery ber tackle, apparcl, and furniture, and cargo, at three thousand

seven hundred and twenty-one dollars and fifty cents. And whereas
the Court aforesaid have ordered that the said schooner, her tackle,
apparel, and furniture, and cargo aforesaid, should be bonded at the
appraised value of the same.

And, whereas, the above bounden, David Files, John W. Simon-
ton, Samuel II. Garrow., and Jotham S, Patten, are content aund
willing to become bound to the said United States in manner and te
the effect following:

Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the
above hounden, David Files, John W. Simounton, Samuel H. Gar-
row, and Jotham 8, Patten. or either of them, or either of their
heirs, executors. or -administrators, «hall pay into the said Court
aforesaid. for the use of the said United States, the said sum of three
thousand seven hundred and twenty-one dolfars and fifty cents, being
the appraised value aforesaid, of the said schooner aforesaid, called
the Louisa, her tackle, appavel, and furniture. and cargo aforesaid,
in case the said sehooner. Ler tackle, apparel. and furniture, and cargo,
shall, by the sentence and decree of the Court aforesaid, be adjudged to
be forfeited or condemmned to the use of the said United States, within
twenty days after the sentence and decree shall be pronounced, and
it the said schaoner or vessel, her tackle. apparel, and furniture, and
eargo wforesaid, shall be wequitted, or if a decree shall pass in said
Court, in favor of the claimants, then, and in such case. if the above
hounden. LDavil Filese Johm W, Simonton, 8. H. Garrow, and Jo-
tham 8. Patiens or either of them, or either of their heirs. execuiors,
or adininisieators, shally within twenty days after the sentence and
decive shall be peanouncen, pay into the said Court aforesaid. or fo
the offtcers thereofs respectivelys all such costs and charges as shall,
in that case, Be taxed and allowed by the said Court aforesaid. to the
said oilicers thereof, wnd i the claimants shall in all things abide and
perform such decree us shudl be wpde by the said Court aforesatd, in
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the said cause, or respecting the same, then this obligation shall be
void, and, otherwise, the same shall be remain in full force and

virtue.
DAVID FILES.
J. W. SIMONTON.
S. H. GARROW,
J. S. PATTEN.
Scaled and delivered in presence of
TERRY M:CUSKER.

Filed 11th September, 1818.
F. H. GAINES, b. C. 6. (.

GeNERAL CourT, JUuLY TERM,

Ordered, on the agrecment of parties, that the one hundred and seven
negroes found on board the vessel Marino, the schooner Louisa, and the
Constitution, libelled in this Conrt, be placed in the possession of James
Caller, Benjamin S. Smoot, and David Files, on their entering into
bond in such amount, and with security as muay be agreed upon by
the parties, conditioned for the forthcoming of said negroes, to abide
the order and decree of the Court. : :

Whereas, one liundred and seven African negroes have been brought
within the jurisdiction, and placed within the custody. of this Court, ag
being liable to forfeiture under the Jaws of the U, States, and whereas
certain persons have claimed said negroes, and deny their liability to
forfeiture, -as aforesaid: and whereas the said causes in refercnce
" to the liability of said negroes to forfeitures could not be decided at
July Term, 1818. of the Alabama General Court, sitting in Admi.
ralty : it was agreed, by and with the consent of the said Court, and
all the persons interested, either in the seizure of said negroes afore-
gsaid, as those claiming restitution of the same, be delivered to seme.
responsible persons, to be admitted by the said Court aforesaid. foir
safe-keeping. until the Court aforesaid, or their officers, shall demand
the same, when the said negraes are to be returned into the custody
of the Court aforesaid, to abide their decision in the premises, all
casualties in reference to the said negroes ave to be excepted from the
liability of the said responsible persons.  Wherenpon, James Caller,
David Files, and Benjamin $. Smoot. came into Court. being the
persons agreed upon by the parties interested aforesaid, by consent of
the Court aforesaid, and stipulated as well to all the parties interested,
as to the Conrt aforesaid. to take possession of the negroes aforesaid,
to keep them well, and return them into Court when demanded by the
said Court, free from all expense to any party concerned, under the
penalty of one hundred thousand dollars, to be levied of the goods
and chattels, lands and tenements. if they shonld make default in the,
stipulation herein mentioned.
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District Court of the United Stales,
February Term, 1821.

The United States

Vs.
The Schooner Louisa, &
Cargo and Slaves. J

These cases are continued by the consent of the captors and claim-
ants, and agireed in the cases of the Marino and Louisa, the slaves
are to be delivered to John Juinn, he giving bond for the safe-keep-
ing and forthcoming of the said negrocs, agreeable to the order of
the Court for their good treatment and care of their health, in the
sum of twelve thousand dollars for the slaves imported in the Marino,
and four thousaid dollars in the case of the Louisa, and the Court
accept of assecurity in both cases, Robertson and Barnewall, F. W, and
J. Armstrong, and Henry V. Chawmberlzin, And inthe case of the Con-
stitution and slaves bonds to the amount of fifty [thousand] dollars, are
to be given; and the Conrt accept of the following persons as secu-
rity ol George M. Brooke, the person io whom the the negroes are
to be bonded, John F. Everitt, Captain A. L. Sands, Lieut. Spencer,
Richard B. Owen, George W, Owen, E. Montgomery, A. Hollinger,
B. S. Smoot, Webster & Griswold, Gilbert C, Russell, and Turner
Stark. And it is ordered by the Court, that the Marshal of this Dis-
trict [take] immediately all the above negroes into possession, until the
bonds are regularly given.

JUNE TERM, 1821,
The United States

VS, s
8chooner Lovisa,
Cargo and Slaves. _J

Continued, by consent, until the January Term, 1822,

Jaxvary TeErM, i822.
The United States

VS, |
Schooner Louisa, '
and Cargo. J

And now comes here Samuel Paxtor, by William II. Robettson, as
his agent, by Samuel Acre, his proctor, and claims the Schooner Lou-
isa, her tackle, apparel, and furniture, and cargo, and for his claim
and answer unto the said libel, he saith, that the saidschooner, accord-
ing to the best of his knowledge and belicf, are the bona fide property of
this claimant; that, on or about the tcnth day of June, in the year
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-sighteen hundred and cighteen, the said schooner sailed from the port
of Havana, in the Island of Cuba, in the lominions of the King of
Spain, bound ior the port of Pensacola, in the Province of West
Florida, then a port belonging to the King of Spain; this claimant
further answering, saith that, while prosecuting the voyage afore-
gaid, and after the arrival of the said schooner in the Bay of Pensa-
cola, within the territorial jurisdiction of the King of Spain, and
while at anchor under the guns of the fort of the Barrancas, belong-
ing to the King of Spain atoresaid. and within the harbor of Pensa-
cola aforesaid, was forcibly seized and taken possession of by the
Navy of the United States, between whom and the United States
there then was, and still is, peace and amity, and by the commander
of the gun-vessel Ketch Surprise, sent into the port of Mobile, within
the jurisdictional limits of the United States; and this claimant. fur-
ther unswering. saith, that the negroes found on board said schooner,
were brought by her from the said port of Havana, in the Island of
Cuba, in the dominions of the King of Spain aforesaid, and were
taken on board as passengers, the property of Spanish subjects re-
siding in Pensacoli . and with intent to land them in Pensacola afore-

. said, and not within 1y port or place of the United States, or of the
ferritorics thereof, and that the said schooner and cargo are not for-
kited under any of the laws of the United States,

Wherefore, the said Samuel Paxton doth claim the said schooner,
her apparel, tackle, and furniture and cargo, as his bona fide pro-
perty, and prays that the same may be restored, and that he may
have his costs in this matter most unrvighteously sustained, and his
damages, occasioned by the seizure and detention of the said scheoner,
so unlawfully made to Lis

SAMUEL ACRE,
Proctor for Claimant.
Sworn to and subscribed in open Court, this 14th January, 1822.

W. H. ROBERTSON.
R. C. Lax~E, Clerk.

ntssto—

Mox~nay, Janwary 14, 1829
Enited States, 7
Vs, ¢
Schooner Louisa, {
and Cargo. J
Froncis Bonales )
Joseph Noriage ‘>

VS,

Six Negroes. _J

It is admitted, by the Attorney for the eaplors, as well as for tic
daimants,

Thai the Louisa and Constitution cleared out from New Oruleans,
and she Marine from Mobile, all for the port of Havana; that thes
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were American schooners with American registers, that the Louisa
and Constitution were cleared from the latter port of New Orleans,
and the Marino for Mobile, at the different periods mentioned in the
commissions sent to Havana, viz: the Marino on the 2d June, 148,
the Constitution on or about the 18th June, 1818, and the Louisa on
the 18th June, 1818, and were captured at the different periods men.
tioned in the libels. ‘

That the different vessels had on board the number of slaves men.
tioned in the libels at the time of capture.

The Marino was captured within a mile and an half of the Barran.
cas. inside of the bar in the harbor of Pensacelu, Ly the U. States
Ketch Surprise, Capt. M Keever.
~ The Louisa was captured outside of the bar at Pensacola, was
standing in but hove to. The Constitution was captured under the
guns.of fort Barrancas, within the bar, by Col. George M. Brouk,

“of the U. States Army. . )

 That Pensacola was, at the time, in the possession of the Ameri.
can troops, under the command of Genceral Jackson, and that the
American flag was flying at the time. That the Constitution was
boarded off Mobile Point, on her way to Mobile, by Curtis Lewis,
Commander of the Revenue Boat, that the time he boarded her, Cap.
tain Sans was on board as agent of the captors arrived, he (C. Lew-
is,) remained on board until she arrived in port, and reported her to
the Collector of the port as being captured by him. ‘That he reported
the same to the District Attorney, but not until Col. Brooke had re-
ported her as cuptured by him.  That Mr. Waiden entered the carge
at the custom house, and was supercargo of the Constitution, That
the libellants for restitution and claimants offered as evidence, the
returns of the commission sent to Havana. which was admitted sub.
ject to the exception of its being issued and signed by a deputy clerk
in all the cases, as well the vessels and cargoes as the slaves, and libels
for restitution; that W+ commission was opened in open Court ; that
"Mr. Vincent Gray is & r:erchant in the Havana; that he was a com-
mercial agent, and the . .son intended for the commission to issue
to: That the cargo of the Marino was on board. and that the regis-
ter of the vessel was in the name of ~William H. Robertson and Aso-
bel Gross; that William H. Robertson eutered the cargo at the cus-
tom house, and bonded the same,

That the Register of the Louisa was in the name of Samuel Paxton.

« Antonio Fische being sworn, says. that he lived under the govern-
ment of Spain from the time of the arvival of O’Kelly, until the coun-
tey was taken possession of by the Americans. That he knows that
slavery is permitted in Spain. but does not know whether it is by any
particular ordinance, or whether it is by custom.” '

¢ Don Miguel Eslava being sworn, says, that slavery is permitted
in the Island of Cuba, but does not know whether it is by any par
ticular ordinance or by custom.”
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General Court.

The President of the United States to Messrs, Gray and John Mur-
dock, Esq. greeting:

Alabama, Territory of the United States.}

Know ye that we, rcposing especial trust and confidence in your
fidelity and prudent circumspection, do hercby authorize and empower
you, that. at such time and place as you may appoint. you carefully
and diligently examine, agreeably to the annexed interrogatories,
such persons. they being first cautioned and sworn or aftirmed to tell
the whole tru#, as you may call before you for that purpose, and such
examinations and depositions by you taken, you are to send sealed
and under your seals. to the honorable the judge of the General Court
of the said Terrvitory at the court to be holden on the first Monday in
January next, together with this writ, witness the honorable Harry
Toulmin. senior judge of our said court, the first Monday in July, in
the year of our Lord one thousand cight hundred and cighteen, the
forty-third year of the sovercignty and independence of the United
States of America.

Issued soth July, 1818,
\ F. H. GAINES,

"I C. General Court.

Tuierrogatories to be administered to witnesses in behalf of the cluimants
and libellers in the following cases, to wit:

ArasaMas GENERAL COURT IN ADMIRALTY :

Tlic United States vs, Schooner Marino and cargo.
The United States vs. Schooner Louisa and cairgo.
The United States vs. Schooner Constitution and cargo,

Henry Mitchelet, Bicgo Crispo, Francis Barras, Ignatius Balderos,
¥s. nineteen negroes. ‘
Joseph Noriego, Francis Bonal, vs. six negroes.

David Nagle, Antonio Frias, vs. eighty-two negrocs.
INTERROGATORIES.

1st. Do you know Pavid Magle, Antonio Frias, Diego Frisps,
Francis Bonal, Ignatius Balderos, Joseph Moriago, Francis Barrias,
and Henry Mitchelett, parties in the above suits, or any of them ?
2d. Where do they generally reside, are they or ave they not sub-
jec’s of His Catholic Majesty the King of Spain, or merchants or
persons vesiding within his dominions ?
__3d. Have you or have you not any knowledge of the said David
Nagle, having shipped in the month of June, 1818, at the port of
Havana fifteen African slaves on board the Constitution, to be trans-
Iorted to the port of Pensacola ; were the said negroes the property
of the said David Nagle and bona fide?
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4th. Have you any knowledge of the said Antonio Frias having
shipped on board the Schooner Constitution sixty-nine negroes at
Havana aloresaid, at the time aloresaid, to be delivered at Pensacola
atoresaid, and were they the real and bona fide of the said Frias?

5th. Have you any kuowledge of the said Francis Bonal, and the
said Joseph Noviego. or some person or persons having shipped on
board the American Schooner Louisa, some time in the said month of
June, at the port of Havana aforesaid, the said Francis Bonal four
negrocs. and the said Joseph Noriego two negroes; and were they tie
true and bona fide property of the said Bonal and Naoriggo ?

6th, Have you any knowledge of the said Mitchelett,®¥he said Diegn
Crispo, Francis Barrias, and Ignatius Balderas, or some person or
persons further having some time in said month of June, at Havans
aforesaid, shipned on board the American Scheoner Marino, nineteen
negroes 3 that is to say @ the saii Diego Crispo, twelve negroes ;5 he
said Henry Mitenelet, four negroes s the said Francis Barrias, one
negro : anil the said Iznativs Baideras, two negroes § to be transport.
ed and delivered ut the port of Pensacola; and were the said negroes
severally the property ot the persous above named ?

i, Were the negeoes memioned in the several foregoing inter-
rogatories purchoscd by the several persons therein sct forth, as
owners in Havang, to your kuowledge, cr by some person for them in
pursuance of their orders and instenctions 3 and were they so shipped
{0 be delivered to them or their orders at Pensacola?

gth. Have you any knowledge of the voyage upon which the afore.
mentioned Schooners Coestitetion, Louisa, and Marvino, sailed {rom
the port of Havana s was it not widerstood between the masters, or
persons having charge of the said vessels, the said owners or shippers,
that they should call ¢ touch at the port of Pensacola atoresaid, and
Iand and deliver the said negroes to the said owners, on their said
ovder; and was theee not an agreement to that effect ?

oth. Whether at the time of the aforesaid shipment of negroes took
place, a preference was not given to shipping under the American flag
to the Spanish. in censcquence of the great danger apprehended of
capture by the insurgent privateers ?

10th. Whether at the time that the said schooner aforesaid sailed
from the port of Havana, it was known, or at least publicly known,
that the American Congress had passed an act, entitled ¢ Anact 1
addition to an act to prohibit the introduction of slaves into any port
or place within the jurisdiction of the United States, from and after
the first day of January, iu the year of our Lord one thousand cight
hundred and cight, and to repeal certain parts of the same,” passed
the 20th day of April, 1818, or whether at the time the said schoonet
aforesaid sailed from the port of Iavana it was known, or at least
publicly so that the United States® troops, under the command of
General Jackson, were in possession of the town of Pensacola.

11th. Do you or do you not krow zny thing in reference to the
cargoes shipped on board either of the said Schooners Louisa. Marino,
and Constitution, at the port of avamna, at the time aforesaid. to
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wit ¢ during the month of June last, and to whom did they belong,
and in what proportions. and for what ports were they shipped, and
by whom were they shipped ? ‘

12th, Do you or do you not know any thing in reference to the
schooners aloresaid. the negroes on board, and their respective car-
. goes that will be tor the benefit of either the United States, the cap-
tors. claimants, or libellants aforesaid, and, if so, declare it,

Issued S0th July, 1818.

F. H. GAINES, D. Clk.

Alabama, Territory of the United States :

I, Francis B, Gaines. Deputy Clerk of the Court of said T'erritory,
do certify that the foregoing pages numbered 1, 2, 5, 4. 5, 6. contain
a trae copy of the interrogatories now on file in the Clerk’s Oflice of
said Court.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my

private scal, (having no seal of oftice,) at St. Stephen’s,
fr s.] on the 50th day of July. in the year of our Lord one
thousand cight hundred and eighteen, and the forty-third
vear of sovercignty and independence of the United States
of America.
F. H. GAINES, D. C. G. C.

Depositions of witnesses, produced, sworn, and examined, on the
annexed interrogatories. on the thirteenth day of October, in the year
of our Lord one thousand cight hundred and cighteen, by virtue of a
commission issucd out of the General Court of the Alabama Territory
to us directed, for the esamination of witnesses, in a certain cause then
pending and at issue between the United States plaintiff, and Schooner
Constitution, and those claiming her cargo, and African slaves on
board, defendants, on the part ol the defendants, as follows, to wit :

Don Francisco Alvarez, of the city of Havana, dispatch clerk in
the house of Don Antonio De Frias, he, the said Frias, being in
Europe. and his brother and Attorney Don Nicholas, being in the
interior, being produced, sworn, and examined, on behalf of the de-
fendants on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and de-
ciare as follows :

1st. To the first interrogatory, he saith, that he knows Don David
Nagle and Don Antonio Frias. having lived as a clerk in the house of
the latter for upwards of eight years, but is not acquainted with the
olher parties named in this interrogatory.

2d, To the second interrogatory he saith, that Don David Nagle
and Don Antonio De Frias, are resident merchants in this city. and
subjects of His Catholic Majesty.

8d. To the third interrogatory le saith, that Don Pavid Nagle, or
some person for him, did ship a number of African negroes on hoard



50 [Doe. No. 163.]

the American Schivoner Constitution, beund to Pensacola, and n part
thercols twelve in mumber, were purchased at the Barracon of Don
Antonio De Frias, No. " 3. and he remembers to have seen a clerk of
the said Nagle or Mr. Mitchelet. in the oflice of the Secretary of this
Government, obtaining a passport for said negroes; but, as to the
number, he knoweth unt. »

4th. T'o this intevvogatory he saith, o his knowledge there were
shipped on board the American Schooner Constitution, by the house
of D¥on Antonio De Frias, in the month of June last. sixty-nine Afvican
negraes, as he understood, for account as expressed in the Ietter and
passport hereto annexed, and marked' A and B, which negroes were
actually imported by the said Antonio De Frias from the coast of
Africa, in the Schooner called the Volorado, and re-shipped from the
Barracon of said Frias, No. 13 he, the said deponent, having obtained
the paseport for the reshipment of the said negroes from the Captain
General. for account of the said Frias. :

5th. To the {ifth intervogatory he suith. that he hath no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory,

7th. To the seventh inrerrogatory he saith, that twelve of the ne-
groes mentioned in the passport obtained from the Captain General,
in the name of David Nagle, hereto annexed, marked C, were pur-
chased from Barracon, No. 18, of Don Antonio De Frias, and shipped
on board said schooner Constitution by said Frias, as expressed in his
letter hereto annesed, marked A,

sth. 'T'o the eighth interrogatory he saith. that the Captain of the
Constitution veceived the aforesaid sixty-nine African negroes. as
well as the others shipped on the said vessel, on the express condition,
as he understood, that he would land them in Pensacola, at which port
Lic was to touch on Lis voyage to New Orleans.

gth. To the ninth interrogatory he saith. that, as insurgent priva-
teers were almost constantly off this poit. Matanvzas and Muriel, the
preference was not only given to the transportation of negroes in
Awerican vessels hence, but that no nerson would risk a negro on
hoard a Spanish vessel for any place. except a vessel of war,

1oth, "Fo the teuth interrogatory he saith, that he never heard of
the act of Congress of the 20th April. 1818. but that he had under-
stoad, for sone years past, that neither African or any other slaves
could be introduced into the United States. or into the territories
thereofy under any circumstances, and it was not until the 26th day of
June last past, and some days after the departure of the schooner Con-
stitution, that information was received here. by the arrival of the
schooner Washingfon, a flag of truce. having troops on board from
Pensaenla, of the capiure and cecupation of Pensacola by the troops
under the comnand of General Jackson,

11th. To the cleventh interrogatory he saith, that he has no other
kuowledge of the negroes mentioned in this interrogatory than already
stated, ‘ ’

tath. To the twellth interrogatory he saith, that he knows no other



[ Doc. No. 163.] 54

watter or thing respecting the African negroes mentioned in the

preceding interrogatories, which can be useful to the claimants, de-

{fendants, or to the United States,
Huvana, 13th October, 1818, ‘

FRANCISCO ALVAREZ,

ViscexT Gray,

Jouxy Murpock.

Don Domingo Rodriguez, of the city of Havana, Clerk, aged
twenty-four years, being produced, sworn, and examined, in behalf
of the defendants on the title of these depositions named, doth depose -
and declare as follows, viz : :

First, 'To the first interrogatory he saith, that he knows David
Nagle, Antonio de Frias. Diego Crispo. and Ignacio Balderos, but is
not acquainted with the other partics named in this interrogatory,

Second. 'T'o the sccond interrogatory he saith, that David Nagle,
Antonio de Frias, and Ignacio Bulderos veside in this city, and he
understands, that Diego Crispo vesides in Pensacolu, and that they
are all subjects of his Catholic Majesty.

Third. To the third interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

Fourth. To the fourth interrogatory he saith, that he hath ne
knowledge of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory, further
than by report that the said Frius had, about that time, shipped a
parcel of negroes for one of the Flovidas. ;

Fifth, To the fifth interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

Sixth, To the sixth interrogatory he saith. that he has knowledge
of the purchase and shipment of fourteen negroes by Diego Crispo
and Ignacio Balderos on board the schooner Marino, bound to Pensa«
cola ; that is to say : twelve by Diego Crispo. and two by Ignacio
Balderos, and he understood from Diego Crispo, that he was about to
purchase four or five negroes more for his triend in Pensacola, and
ship the same by the vessel Marino.

Seventh, To the seventh interrogatory he s~ith, that he had no
other knowledge of the purchase of the negroes mentioned in the fore-
going interrogatories than stated in the preceding answers,

Eighth., 'To the eighth interrogatory he saith, that he understood
that the Marino was to enter into the pmt of Pensacold, and there
land the negroes, shipped on board at this port; but, as to the two
other schooners mentioned in this interrogatory. he has no Lnowledge
of their destination,

Ninth, Tothe ninth interrogatory he saith, that. as insurgent pri-
vateers were numerous in these seas, the preference was given to
American vessels for the transportation of every species of property,
as nnthing was considered safe on board of Spanish vessels.

Tenth. To the tenth interrogatory he saith, that he never heard of
the act of Congress mentioned in this interrogatory, and it was not
until the arvival of the schooner Washington Flag of "Truce, who ar-
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rived here latein June last past, with troopson board, after the depar.
ture of the Marino, that information was veceived of the seizuve and
occupation of Florida by the troops under the command of General
Jackson.

Eleventh, 'To this interrogotary he saith. that he has no other
knowledge of the negroes mentioned in this intervogatory than al-
ready stated.

Trelfth.  To the twelfth interrogatory he saith. that he knows no
other matter or thing respecting the African negroes mentioned in the
preceding interrogatories, which can be useful to the claimants, de-
fendants, or to the United States,

Havana, 13th Octobery 1818,

DOMINGO RODRIGUEZ.
ViNceENT Gray,
Jounx Mrurpock,

Don Jose Antonio Vidal y Pasqual, of the city of Havana, mer-
chant, being produced. sworn, and examined. on the behalf of the title
of these depositions named, doth depose and declare as follows, viz :

First, To the first interrogatory he saith, that he knows all the
persons named in the interrogatory except Henry Mitchelet and
Ignacio Balderos,

Secon? Lo the second interrogatory he saith, that David Nagle
and Antonio de Frias arce merchants of this city, and the others men-
tioned in this interrogatory known to him in Pensacola, and subjects
to his Catholic Majesty.

Third. To the third interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

Fourth. To the fourth interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

Fifth. 'To the fifth interrogatory he saith. that he purchased of
Joseph Noriago, of Pensacola, two negroes from the Barracon, and
shipped them on board the American schooner Louisa, under the care
of Francisco Bonal some time in June last past for Pensacola, and un-
derstood that there were other negroes shipped on board the same
vessel for Pensacola. but to whom they belonged he knoweth not.

Siath. 'To the sixth interrogatory he saith, he has no knowledge of
the shipment of negroes on board the Marino mentioned in this inter-
rogatory.

Seventh. 'To the seventh interrogatory he saith. that he purchased
the two negroes mentioned by him from Custa. Man. Gual & Brothers,
and shipped them for account of Joseph Noriago of Pensacola.

Eighth. 'To the eighth interrogatory he saith. that he has no know-
Iedge of the voyage of the Constitution nor the Marino, but that had
the Louisia not been bound to Pensacola, he shieuld not have shipped
the negroes, which the Captain thercof undertook to deliver in Pen-
sacola.
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Minth., 'To the ninth interrogatory he saith, that at the time the
aforementioned negroes were shipped, it was not safe to ship any pro-
perty on board of Spanish vessels. on account of the many insurgent
privateers in these scas, consequently the preference was given to
American vessels.

Tenth. 'To the tonth interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the act of Congress mentioned in this interrogatory, but has
understood, for some years past, that no negro slaves could be intro-
duced into the United States under any circumstances, and it was not
until some days after the departure of the schooner Louisa, that it was
known herc that the troops under General Jackson had actually occu-~
pied Pensacola.

Eleventh. 'To the eleventh interrogatory he saith, that he knows
nothing more of the negro cargoes of the vessels mentioned in this
interrogatory than already stated, ‘

Twelfth, To the twelfth interrogatory he saith, that he knows
nothing morc respecting the cargoes of the vessels, which can be use-
ful to the defendants, claimants, or to the United States.

Huvana, 13th October, 1818.

JOSE ANTONIO VIDAL Y PASQUAL.
VivcENT GRAY,
JOIIN‘ Mvrbock.

A. A,
Habana, 15 de Junio, de 1818.

Muy Sen. mio y Amigo : He tomado la libertad de embarcar abor-
do de 1a Goleta Constitucion, su Capn. Don Henrvique Peckham, a la
consignacion de V, sesenta y nueve negros bosales, y asi mismo he
sacado el pasaporte del Excelentisimo Sciior Capitan General, como
propiedad suya a fin de facilitar la entrada en esa,

Tengo hecha peticion 4 esta Sefior Intendente General para el pago
de ticrra que V. me tiene indicado sobre del Escambia. y concedido
que me sea no tendra dificultad en concurrir con las miras de V. (con
algunas modificaciones.) pero trataré extensamente sobre este asunto
en otra carta seperada, limitandome en esta 4 suplicarle el pronto
desembarco de los Esclavos, y sus amistosas atenciones & su descan-
so, ulojamiento en parage sano, vigilancia de su salud y alimento que
deve indispensablemente consistir en la mayor parte de arroz.

Me prometo este gusto mas ampliamente por otra ocasion que deve
salir en breve, y me repito como siempre su afectisimo amigo y ser-
vidor,

Por mi hermano D. Antonio.
NICOLAS DE FRIAS.
A Dox Henrique MrTcHELET,
Del Comercio de Pensacola.
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B.
Habana, 13 de Junio, de 1818,

Concedo licentia &4 D. Antonio Frias. de esta comercio para que del
cargamento de negros bosales con que entré vicitamente, en este puerto
procedente de la Costa de Africa, la Goleta Espanola Valadora,
pueda hacer & Panzucola la vemesa de scsenta y nueve de ellosal
cargo de M, Pachen para entragarlos 4 sue dueno M. Henrique Mit.
chelets verino de aquella plaza, segn. lo ha representado en memorial
de este mes acreditando lo necesario en cl asunto.

- | JUAN JUINN.

Don Jose Cien Fuegns Jovellanos Caso y Ramirez, Caballero
Gran Cruz, de la real Militar Orden de S. Hermenigildo. condecora.
do con las del ejército Asturiano y tercero de operaciones. Cansejero
en el Supremo de la guerra, Teniente General de los reales ejércl.
tos, Gobernador de la plaza de la Habana., Capitan General de la
Isla de Cuba y de las dos Floridas, Presidente de la real Audiencia
que reside en la propia Isla, Juez de Alzadas del tribunal def real
Consulado de ella, y Presidente de 1a Junta Econdtnica y de G hier-
no del mismo, Subdelegado de la Superintendencia General de Cor.
reos. Postas y estafetas, y Juez Protector de la real Compania de la
Habana, y de la renta de tobacos, &c. &c.

Concedo licencia & D. David Nagle, para que remita 4 Panzacola
trece negros bosales de la propiedad de Don Juan Ynerarity, resi-
dente en dicha plaza,

Habana, 12 de Junio, de 1818.
JUAN JUINN.

The Unifed States
Vs, ] DistricT CourT oF THE UNITED STATES,
Schooner Lowvisaand
Cargo, and ] January Term, 1822.

Marino and Cargo._J

Samuel Acre, Esq. moved to dismiss the libels against these two
vesscls and cargoes.

First. Because the libel concludes contrary to the form of the statute.

Second. Because no admiralty process has issued. Which motion is
not sustained by the Court.



[Doc. No. 163.] 55

The United States
VS, Tvuespoay, January 17, 1822.
Schooner Louise and Cargo.
Juseph .A’oriugo,“
Francis Bonales,
VS, f

Six Negraes,

It is ordered and decreed, that the schooner Louisa, her tackle,
apparcl, and furniture, and cargo. found on board at the time of sei-
zure. be decreed to be forfeited to the United States, and that the dis-
tribution thereot be reserved for the further order of this Court.

It is further ordered, that the six negroes be and remain subject to
the laws of the State of Alubama, and that the distribution of the said
negroes be reserved for the further order of this Court.

From said decree, the claimants and libellants for restitution, prayed
for, and obtained, an appeal to the Supreme Court of the United
States,

I. Robert Carr Lane, Clerk of the District Court of the United
States, for the Alabama District, at Mobile, do hereby certify. that
the above and foregoing twenty-five pages, contain a true copy of the
record and proceedings had in the said Court, in the case of the
Cuited States vs. the schooner Louisa and cargo, Joseph Noriago
and Fraucis Bonales, vs. six negroes.

Given under my hand and seal of office, this 24t November, 1828,

ROBERT CARR LANE, Clerk.

To the Honorable Henry M. Brackenridge, Judge of the Supreme Court,
gc

The memorial of Francisco Bonal.a Spanish inhabitant of West Flori-
da, vespectfully represents, that some time during the Spring.orearly in
the Swrumer of 1818, your memorialist, then a Spanish subject. residing
in the City of Pensacola, shipped on board the American schooner
Louisa, bound from Havana to the port of Pensacola, a valuable car-
go of groceries aud merchandise. the property of your memorialist:
that on the arrival of the said [schr.] in the port of Pensacola, contrary
to the expectations of your memorialist, Pensacola was in the possession
of the troops of the United States : that amongst other articles shipped
on board the said schooner, were two slaves, the property of Joseph
Noriago, also a Spanish inhabitant of Florida: that, in conscequence
of the importation of the said slaves. after the said schooner had an-
chored in the port of Pensacola, the said schooner was seized by one
of the armed vesscls of the United States. for an alleged violation of
the laws, which were unknown and inoperative in Florida, and carried
to Mobile for condemnation : that your memorialist, in order to recover
his said property, has expended much time and labor. and inrurred
great expense, without effect: that the cargo, so far as your raemo-
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rialist was interested, is mentioned and detailed in the copy of the
manifest of the said vessel, herewith filed, and accompanying, 'Uhe
articles herein mentioned, marked F B, those marked F F, and those
marked R, being the property of your memorialist : And your memo-
rialist further represents, that the said goods were all entirely and to-
tally lost to your memorialist, to his damage $4,889 05: and that he
has received no compensation therefor,  Your memorialist, therefore,
prays your honor to audit and adjust this his claim. against the United
States, according to the pl"miuiom of the Treaty of Cession, and the
Act of Contrrcss passed in aid thereof, March Sd. 1823.
FRAN’CUO BONAL.

A.

Account of the Goods shipped in Huvana, on board the schooner Louisa,
Pedro Rivero. master. bound for Pensacola. on account and risk of
Francisco Bonal, and which were seized in the bay of Pensacolu by
the United Slates keleh Surprise, Capt. M-Keever,

F B 5 pipes Taftin, at S125, - - - - 625
ten hags Coffee, wto 45 arr. 7d. 4 vl - - 405
«  four boxes Fidoes w'g. 50 1b. cach, 4 rl. - - 100
¢ six kegs Olives, 6. 4, - - - - 89
“  one demijohn Anniseed of - Magna, - - 24
¢ 4 bbls. Malaga Wine, at s0, - - - 120
¢ six cases Gin, at 15, - - - - 78
¢ twohalt pipes Red Wine, at 70, - - - 140
B. twelve hampers Porter, cont'g. one dozen cach, 6, 72
F B. six boxes Wine,at 12, - - - «- 72
¢ fifteen boxes sugar w°g. 244 are. 9 rse at 13 vl - 1,145 33
¢ seven barrvels do.  w'g. 60 9. - - 282 T}
“  six tierces tobacco, w'g, 22 2,a8rl - 552
¢ onecase cont’g 80 dozen smali boxes sweetmeats, 4 rs. 480
“  two boxes superfine Segars, at'$16, - - 52
F F. twenty-five bbls, (Sardines,) at 20, - - 500
«  two loads Plantain, at 20, - - 40
¢ fifteen dozen Pine Apples, at 4, - 60
Taken out of Mr. Bonal's apparel trunk, by the ofticers
who boarded the schooner,
Six dozen Madras Handkerchiefs, - . - 72
'I'wo pieces Calico, at 25, - - - - 50
4,889 35
So much paid a lawyer in Mobile, - - - 130
So much expended by Mr. Bonal, in two trips to Mo-
bile, with one servant, &c. - . - 850
Protest, &c. &c. &e. - - - - - 60

E. E 85419 S
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Pexsacors, June 26, 1828,

Francisco Bonal, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that the
within is a just and true account of the losses which he sustained by
the operations of the army of the United States in Florida, in 1818,
and that Le has received no compensation therefor.

: FRAN'CO BONAL.

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this 27th day of Scptember,
18235, ROBT. MITCEELL.
Justice of the Peace.

PENsAcoLA, the 10t — 1828.—Personally came before me, a Justice
of the Peace for the County of Escambia, and Territory of Florida,
Henry Michelet. Emanuel del Barco, and Pablo Palmes, who being
duly sworn. declares, and says, that the prices of the same articles in
the annexed invoice. were the curvent price of the same articles in the
vear 1818, when the American army occupied the place.

HENRY MICHELET,
MANUEL DEL BARCO,
PABLO PALMES.
Swern and subscribed before me, this 10th July, 1823.
ROBERT MICHELL,
Justice of the Peace.

Personally appeared, this 27th day of August, 1823, Peter Alba,
junior, of lawful age, who. being duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that
the within inventory is a true copy and translation from the original
invoice of the cargo of the schooner Louisa, seized anid taken by the
armed vessel of the United States, in the year of our Lord cighteen
hundred and eighteen, at the port of Pensacola.

ROBT. MITCHELL,

Justice of the Peace.

Deposition taken this 27th day of September, in the year of our Lord
1825, in support of a claim of Francisco Bonal, for compensation from
the United States, for injuries done to his property by the operations of
the American army of the said United States in Florida, in the year
1818, under the 9th article of the Treaty of Cession, and the JAct of
Congress passed March 8d, 1828.

Personally appeared hefore me, a Justice of the Peace. in and for
Escambia County, Pcter Alba, junior, who, being duly sworn, depo-.
seth, that he knows, that, in the month of February, in the year 1818,
Francisco Bonal. a Spanish inhabitant of West Florida, sailed from
the Port of Pensacola for the Havana, with a view of getting satisfac-

8
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tion for some claims which the said Francisco, and Peter Alba, senior,
held upon the Spanish Government, and appropriating the money re-
ceived upon said claims, to the purchase of a cargo of goods shipped
for Pensacola : that, as this deponent thinks, on the twentieth day of -
June, in the said year, the said Francisco arrived, on his return from
the Havana, in t)¢ Port of Pensacola: that, on the 28th day of May,
preceding the arrival of the said Francisco. the American forces had
taken pessession of Pensacola and the adjacent country : that the
said Francisce arrived in the American schiconer Louisa, and that the
said schooner was scized by an armed vessel of the United States Go-
vernment, called the Surprise, commanded by Capt. M<Keever, and
taken to Mobile. And this deponent further says, that he saw the
bills of lading of the cargo of the said schooner Louisa, and that from
them it appeared, that nearly the whole of the said cargo was shipped
in the name and for the usp of the said Francisco: And this deponent
further says, that the copy of the manifest, signed by Addin Lewis,
Collector of the Port of Mobile, dated 21st April, 1825, contains, to
the best of his recollection, an inventory of a)l the goods mentioned in
the said bills of lading, all the articles marked F B, these marked
F F, and those marked R, being the property of the said Francisco;
and further this deponent saith not.
. ALBA.
Sworn to and subscribed before me, this 27th September, 1823.
ROBT. MITCHELL,
Justice of the Peace.

Deposition taken this 27th day of September, eighteen hundred and
lwenty-three, in support of a claim of Francis Bwmal against the
United States, in Florida, in the year 1818, under the ninth article of
the Treaty of Cession. and the Act of Ccagress thereupon passed, the
third day of Murch, 1823,

"This day, personally appeared before me, a Justice of the Peace for
Escambia County. Scbastian Carro, of lawful age, who, being duly
sworn, deposeth and saith. that he, this deponent, was living in Pen-
sacola in the year 1818 : that, in June of the said vear, the arrival of
the schooner Louisa was expected in the said Pensacola, by several
persons whohad aninterest in her cargo : that, about the twentieth day
said month of June, the said schooner came into port, from' the Ha-
vana, and that, immediately on her arrival, she, the said schooner
Louisa, togciiwr with her cargo, was seized and carried away, as this
deponent understood, to Mobile; and this deponent further says, that
shortly after the said seizure of the said schooner, this deponent ac-
companied the said Francisco Bonal to the said Town of Mobile, to
entdeavor to recover so much of the said cargo of the said vessel as
belonged to the said Frencisco : that, on his arrival at Mobile, this de-
ponent found the said goods in the hands of T. M+Kuscard & Co. of
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the said Town of Mobile: And this deponent further says, that, 2%ter
being satisfied that these goods were the same which had been taken
on Loard the said schooner Louisa, in the said Pert of Pensacola, he
examined them, and found that such of them as were admitted to be
the property of the said Francisco, agreed with the goods mentioned
in the accompanying manifest, marked with the letters FBand R 3
And this deponent further says, that the said ¥rancisco was at a great
expense in endeavoring to recover said goods, but that he could not
succeed in regaining any part of them : And this deponent further
says, that the said schoonor was seized by a ketch commanded by Cap-
tain M+Kcever, who was at that tinre co-operating with the army of
the United States, then in possession of Pensacola, and of the Fort at
the Barrancas : And this deponent further says, that he, the said Fran-
cisco,was supercargo on board the schooner Louisa;and further, thathe,
this deponent, examined the bills of lading of the said cargo, and found
that they corresponded with the said manifest, and showed that the
said articles in the said manifest, marked F B, and R, were the
property of the said Francisco : And this deponent further says,
that he, the =aid Francisco, then was, and had long been, a Span-
ish inhabitant of West Florida, And further this deponent saith net,
SEBASTIAN CARRO.

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this 27th day of Sept. 1823.
ROBT. MITCHELL,
Justice of the Peace.

Documents accompanying.

A. Certificd copy of the manifest of the cargo of the schooner
Louisa.

B. Certificd copy of the valuation of the schooner Louisa and cargo.

C. An account of the goods shipped by M. Yenalber in Havana, on
board the schooner Louisa.

From the cvidence in this case, it appears that an American schooner,
the Louisa, was scized in the port of Pensacola, with her cargo and
several slaves on Loard, and carried into the Port of Mobile, for ad-
judication, on an alleged violation of the laws of the United States,
in relation to the importation of slaves. The cargo and slaves be-
longed to Spanish subjects, and were inported into Pensacola in 1818,
under the belief that this place was still under the dominion of Spain,
In my opinion, there was no intention on the part of the owner
of the articles before mentioned, to violate the municipal laws of the
United States, nor were they under any obligations to observe them
excepting in places where those laws were wctually in force. The
Govermment de faclo of West Florida, was at that time exercised by
the officers of the United States, but the laws of the United States had
not been extended, and it is & clear principle, that even in the case of
a conquercd country, the existing municipal laws continue in force un-
til pepealed. or others are enacted to supply their place.  No act ¢
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Congress appears to have been extended to West Florida, at that pe-
riod, and such importations were not forbidden by the laws of Spain.
Under the circumstances of the case, I am of opinion that this claim.
aut is entitled to compensation for the cargoe specified in his account,
to the full amount thereof. '
$5,449 a7} H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,
Judge Sup’r Ct. W. F. and

Commissioner under the 9th Art. of the Trealy.

——————

.~

WesT Froripa, ss.

I do hereby certify, that the foregoing contains a true copy of all the
evidence exhibited and taken in support of the claim of Francisco
Bonal, received by the Judge of the Superior Court of West Florida,
and on file at my office.

In testimony whereof E-have hereunto set my hand and
seal of office, the 21st day of January, 1824, in
the €ity of Pensacola.

(1.8 ] JOHN MILLER,
Clk. Sup. €t W, Florida.
By W. Hazerrn Huxr, D. C.

To the Hon, H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,
Judge of the Superior Court of I¥est Florida,

The memorial of Joseph Noriega respectfully represents: that. sume
time in the month of May. 1818, your memovialist, then a Spanish
subject of West Florida, shipped from the port of Havana, in the
Island of Cuba, on board of the American schooner Louisa, bound
to the port of Pensacola. two valuable African slaves, and two boxes
of segars, the property of your memorialist.

That Pensacola, though at that time a Spanish port, and subject
alone to the jurisdiction of the Spanish authorities, was, at the time
of the arrival of the said schooner, though contrary to the expecta.
tions of your memorialist, in the peaceable possession of the Army
and Navy of the United States, and that, after the said schooner had
been safely moored in the port of Pensacola, she, with her cargo, and
the slaves and segars of your memorialist, was forcibly seized, for an
alleged violation of the laws of the United States, which was at that
time unknown and inoperative in this T'erritory. 'That the said schoo-
ner and cargo, with the slaves of your memorialist, and the said se-
gars, were finully carried to Mobile for adjudication.

That your memorialist, in order to recover his said property, has
mare several fruitless and unavailing efforts. which have only been
attended with loss of time and other expenditures, Lhat the money
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gxpended by your memorialist, for this purpose, when added to the
truc value of the sail slaves and the said segars, will exceed the sun
of two thousand dollars. Wherefore, your memorialist prays that
your Honor will examine his said cause of complaint, and that he
may reccive, by the award of your Honor, such indemnity,.as has
been provided in such case, by the 8th article of the Treaty of Ces-
sion, and the act of Congress, approved the 8d day of -March, 1823,
And your memorialist, as in duty bound, will ever pray.

JOSEPil NORIEGA.

Persoually appeared before me, a Justice of the Peace, in and for
Escambia County, Joseph Noriega, who being duly sworn, deposeth
anil saith, that the following is a just and true account of the losses
of the said Joseph. by the operations of the Army of the United States,
in 1814, and that he has received no compensation for the same, or
for any part thereof, to wit:

One negro man, worth - - - - $800
One other negro man, worth - - - 800
T'wo boxes segars - ’ - - 82

$ 1,632

JOSEPII NORIEGA.

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this 27th day of August, 182S.
ROBERT MITCHELL,
Justice of the Peace.

Depasition of Col. Geo. M. Brookz, taken the 18th day of August,
1813. in support of a claim of Joseph Noriega, under the 9th article
of the Treaty of Cession, and the act of Congress thereupon, ap-
proved March 8, 1828, for injuries done to the property of the said
Joseph, by the operations of the Army of the United States, under
General Jackson, in the ycear 1818,

Personally appeared before me, a Justice of the Peace in and for
Escainbia County. this 18th day of August. 1823. Geo. M. Brooke,
who, being duly sworn, deposcth and saith, that he, this deponent,
was. in 1818, attached to the army of Gen. Jackson, which entered
Florida: that this deponent commanded the detachment which took
possession of P’ensacola and the Barrancas. That that possession was
taken on or about the 27th day of May, and that, in June following,
whilst this deponent commanding at the Barrancas. it was reported
to him that a vessel had arrived at the port of Pensacola from the
Havana, laden, in part with negroes.  After inquiring more parti-
cularly into the circumstarces and caunse of the detention of the said
vessel, whose name was the Louisa, this deponent ordered her to be
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restored to her owners.  That the said vessel had on board, amongst
other things, two negroes, belonging to the said Joseph Noriega,
which had been purchased in the Havana, and shipped on board said
vessel for the said Joseph, residing at Pensacola, aforesaid. And this
deponent further represents, that, after he, this deponent, had so, as
aforesaid, ordercd the said vessel and cargo to be re-deiivered to their
owners, the said vessel and cargo were seized upon by Licutenant
M+Keever, commanding the Naval forces at Pensacola, and taken to
Mobile, amongst which said cargo, were the said two negroces of the
said Joseph. And this depouent further says, that the said two ne.
groes have never been returned to the said Joseph, and this deponent
believes that he, the said Josepl, has never received any compensation
for the loss of the same,

And this deponent further says, that the said two negro men were
well-looking, hearty slaves, worth, as this deponent supposes, the
sum of five hundred dollars each. And this deponent further says,
that the said Joseph was then, and had long been, a Spanish inhabi.
tant of the Terrvitory of Flovida,

And further this deponent saith not.

GEO. M. BROOKE.

Sworn to and suhseribed before me, this 18th August, 1823,
ROBT. MITCHELI,
Justice of the Peace

Deposition taken the 27th day of August, 1825, in supportof a
<laim of Joseph Noriega, under the 9th article of the "T'reaty of Ces-
sion, and the act of Congress thercupon, passed the third day of March,
1823, for injurics done to the property of the said Joseph, by the
opcrations of the Army of the United States, under the command of
General A. Jackson, in 1818,

Personally appeared before me, a Justice of the Peace in and for
the County of Escambia, Francisco Bonal, who being duly sworn,
and of lawful age, deposcth and saith, that, about the middle of Junc,
1818, this deponcnt arrived at the port of Pensacola, from the Ila-
vana, in the Schooner Louisa, which was commanded by Peter Re-
vara. That, on his arrival, this deponent was surprised to find Pen-
sacola and the Barrancas in the possession of the Army of the United
States. And this deponent further says, that. very shortly after his
avrival, as aforesaid, thesaid schooner was forcibly and violently seized
upon by an armed vessel of the United States Government. and carried,
as this deponent has since been informed, to Mobile. together with her
whole cargo.  And this deponent: further says, that, amongst other
things on board the Schooner Louisa, were two negro men, belonging
to the said Joseph Noviega, and two boxes of segars : which said ne-
gro men were delivered in the city of Havana, by Don J. Antomio
Vidal, for Joseph Noriega, to this deponent, having been, as this
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deponent understond, purchased by the said Vidal, for the said Joseph;
and this deponent further says, that the said negro men were from
nineteen to twenty years old, and worth, as this deponent supposes,
about the sum of eight hundred dollars each, at that time, in Pensa.
cola, and the said segars. ahout sixteen dollars per box. And this
deponent believes that the said Joseph has never received any com.
pensation for the loss of the said two negro men, or the said two boxes
segars, though, as this deponent believes, they were totally lost to
the <aid Joscph.

And this deporent further says, that the said Joseph Noricga was
then, and had loeng been, a Spanish inhabitant of West Florida, And

further this deponent saith not,
FRANCIS BONAL.

Sworn to and subscribed this 27th day of August, 1823,

ROBT. MITCHFELL,
Justice of the Peage.

For the same reasons which I have assigned in the case of Francis-
co Bonal, claiming compensation for the cargo of the Louisa, I am of
opinion. that the claimant in this case, is cntitled to compensation, at
the rate of six hundred and fifty dollars, each, for the said negrocs, and
for the segars, sixtecn dollars per box.

% 1,352,
’ H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,
Judge Sup. Courl, W.F. and JActing as Commissioner
under the Sth Article of the above Lreaty.

¥Pest Florida, ss.

I do hereby certify that the foregoing contains a true copy of all
the evidence exhibited and taken in support of the claimn of Joseph
Noriega, received by the Judge of the Superior Court of West Flo-
rida, and filed in my oflice.

In testimony whercof, I have hercunto sct my hand and seal of

office, at Pensacola, this, the 21st day of January, 1824.
JOHN MILLER,
Clerk Sup. Court West Florida.
By
W. HAZELY. HUNT, D, C.

To the honorable Ilenry M. Brackenridge, Judge rff the Superior Court
Jor the District of West Florida,

Your memorialist Francisco Barrios, Ignacio Balderas, Diego

Crispo. and Henry Mitchellet, huinbly represents : T'hat, in the year

of eur Lord eighteen hundred and eightecn, they, and each of them
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were Spanish inhabitants of Florida : that, in May or June, of the
above mentinned yéar, a certain schooner called the Marino clainied
and owned by Wm. II. Robertson and Asabel Gross, came to the
port of Pensacola, in the then province of West Florida, from the
port of Havana ; and your memorialists would {urther represent that
there were shipped on board the saill schooner, at the said- port of
Havana, for the use and henefit and as the property of your memo-
rialists, njneteen negro slaves, which had been purchased in the city
of Havana by the agent of your memerialists conforinably to their
orders anid directions. And your memorialists further represent,
that. at the time of the arrival of the said schooner as aforesaid, the
port of Pensacola was occupied by the Aviny of the United States,
and that the United States ketch Surprise. commanded by Lieutenant
M-+Keever, was in the waters of Pensucola Bay co-operating with
the said army ; that the said schooner Marine was, shortly after
hee arrival, seized and captured by the said United States ve-sel. and
the «aid schoaner and cargo. together with the said nineteen negro
slaves. belonging as af resaid to your memovialists, were taken by
the waid M Keever to the State of Alxbama and that the said negro
slaves were totally lost to your memorialist in consequence of the said
seizure, and that they have never received any compensation there-
for. And your memorialist further represent that the said nineteen
negro sluvey, averaging the whole number, were worth the sum of
six hundred and fifty dollars each : Wherefore tiey say. that they
have sustained damage to the amount of twelve thousand thiee hun-
dred and fifty dollars. and they pray your honor to audit and adjust
the claim set forth in the premises, according to the provisions of the
ninth article of the treaty. and the act of Congress thereupon, passed
March 3d, 1823, And your memorialists will ever pray. &c.
" FRANCISCO BARRIAS,

IGNACIO BALDERAS,

DIEGO CRISPO.

HENRY MITCHELET.
Tue UxiTep STATES,

To Francisco Barrros,

Ieyacio BaLperas,

Dieco Crispo,

HeNrY Mitcuerer.  Dr.

‘I'o 19 negro slaves, at $650 each, . - - 12,350

Document A. accompanying
A record of proceedings to tiec General Court of Alabama, in
the case of the United States vs. the schooner Marino, and Diego
Crispo, and others. vs. nineteen negro slaves. .
For the same reasons as were given in the case of Francisco Bo-
mal, in bis claim for the loss of the cargo of the schooner Louisa, !
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am of opinion that {he scizure of the negroes on bhoard the schooner
Mavino wag iliegal, and that the owners ought w be compensated
therefory estimating the value of the said negroes at § 6:0 each.
b, H. M. BRACKENRIDGE,
Judge Supreme Court, W. F. and acting as Commissioner, §c.

WesT Frorind, ss.

I do hereby certify. that the foregoing contains a true copy of the
petition and account of Iranciseo Bavring. Ignacio Balderas. Diego
Crispo, and Henry Michelet. received by the Judge of the Superior
Court of West Florida, and filed in iy ollice.

- In testimony whereof, I have hercunto set my hand

[SEAZ.] and seal 31 ollice, this the twenty-fourth day of January,

A, D, 1824,
JOHN MILLER, Clerk
Superior Court W, Florida.

» By W. HAZELL HUNT, D, C.

ArLrBAMA TERRITORY o THE UNITED STATES.
General Courly July Term, 1818,

“Before you. the Honorable Judges of the General Court in and for
the said T'erritory, the United States of America, by William Craw-
ford, their attorney for the said Territory. and give the Court here
to understand and be informed, that the ninth day of June, in the
year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighteen, the
American vessel called the Marino. having an American register,
and of the burden of seventy-five tons or tiereabonts. owned in whnle
by American citizens, viz: by Ashael Giross and William . Robert-
son, having on board nineteen negroes, having some time previously
taken on board the said negroes at the port of Havana. in the island
of Cuba, being a foreign port in the possession of the King of Spain,
with intent to land the same in the United States, and to hold the
same as slaves to service or labor. was found, seized. and taken pos-
session of. by Isaac McKeever, Esq tUommander of the United
States® ketch. or vessel. called the Surprize, in the bay of Pensacoia,
within the jurisdictional limits of the United States, and having on
Unard also a valuable cargo, consisting of forty-fuur hogsheads of
molasses, cighteen hagsheads of sugar, twenty-five boxes of sugar,
nincty boxcs of segars, fruits, straw bats and baskets, two boxes
of sugar, one barvel of coffee, one keg of olives, two jars of olives,
ship stores and other articles ; and the said vessel called Marino,
tagether with the cargo and the negroes on board, have been brought
by the said Isaac M*Kcever, Esquire, commander, into the port of
Mobile, in the district of Maobile. and are now in the jurisdiction of

0
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this court for a violation of an act of Congress, entitled ¢ An act to
peohibit the importation ot slaves into any port or place within the
Jurisdiction of the United States, from and after the first day of Jan-
uary, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eight,
particularly for a violation of the seventh section of said a¢t P
The «aid United States by theie said attorney, furtheér “shew Cl;
the judges of this kouorable coart, that, on or about the third day of
Junesin the year of cur Lord one thousand eight hundred and eigh-
Cteen. divers citizens of the United States, took and veceived on
board of the American vessel called the Marino., owned in whole
by Awmerican citizens, Ashael Gross and William . Robertson, and
transported from the Island of Coba. being a foreign place in the
possession of the King of Spain. nineteen negroes not being inhabi-
tunts nor Lield to service by the laws of cither of the States or Terrie
torics of the United States for the purpose of holding the said ne-
groes as slaves © and that the said vessel called the Marino, together
with a valuable cargo and the said negroes. was, on or abuout the
ninth day of June. in the year eighteen hundred and eighteen, found,
seized, and taken possession of, in the bay of Pensacola, within the
Juitsdictional hmits of the United States, by Isaac MrKceever, Esq.
commander of the United States® keteh or vessel called the Surprise,
and that the said vessel catled the Marino, together with her cargo,
and the said negroes, have been brought by the said 1saac M*Keever,
Esq. commander, to the porvt of Mobile, in the District of Mobile,
and within the jurisdiction of this court, for a violation of the laws
of the United States, particularly for a violation of the fourth sec-
tion of an act of Congress, entitled ¢ An act in addition to an act
to prohibit the introduction of slaves into any port or place within
the jurisdiction of the United States. from and after the first day of
January, in the year of our Lord one thousaud eight hundred and
eizht, and to repeal certain parts of the same.” 'I'he said United
States, by their sald attorney. further give the judges of this honora-
bie court to understand and be informed, that, on or about ‘he 25th
day of April, in the year 1818, divers citizens of the United States
fitted, equipped, and prepared, and caused to sail. the American ves-
sel called the Marino, having an American register, from the port of
Mobile, within the jurisdiction of the United States, for the purpose
of procuring cargoes from the Island of Cuba, a foreign place in the
possession of the king of Spain, to be transported to Pensacola, a
place in the possession of the King of Spain, a5th day of April,
in the year 1818, but now and on the 9th day of June, in the year
1818, in the possession of the United States of America, and thence
to Mobile, a port in the District of Mobile within the United States,
and that the said vessel called the Marino, together with her cargo
and nincteen negroes, taken on board of the said vessel at the Island
of Cuba afuresaid, were, on the 9th day of June, in the ycar 1818,
found, seized, and taken possession of in the bay of Pensacola, navi-
§uhlc {rom the sea by vessels of ten tons burden and upwards, by
saac M Keever, ks commander of the United States® ketch ur
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vessel called the Surprise, in pursuance Hf insteuctions from the
proper officers of the United States ; and that the said Isane Mriee-
very, Esq. commander, hath brought the said vessel Marino, together
with her cargo and the said nineween negrovs, into the poret of Stobile,
in the District of Mobile, and within the jurisdiction of this court,
for a violation of an act of Congress, entitled * An act to prohibit
“the introduction of shuves in any port or place, withimn the jurisdic-
tion of the United States, from and after {he first day of January,
in the year of onr Lord one thousand cight hundeed and cights and
to repeal certain parts ot the siwe"”

Wherefore. the said United States pray that a citation may issue,
and that the said vessel Marvino, together with her tackle, apparvel
and furniture, and also her cargo, may be declared by a decree
of this court to be [orfeited to the said United States, and may be
condemiied to be sold, aud the proceeds ot such sale may be distribut-
ed according to lIaw. And the said United States pray that the said
nincteen negroes may, i virtue of the acts of Congress in such case
made and provided, and of the act of the territorial legislature, in
pursuance of the acts of Congress in such cases, be and declared
by a decree of this court to be forfeited, and may be condemned th be
sold, and the proceeds of such sale distributed according to law.

WM., CRAWFORD,
Attorieey of the Uidled Siales,
: or the AHahama Trrritury,

Filed 16th Furne, 1818,

F. lL. Gases, D, C G C.

Jdlabama Territory of the United Slate#,
General Court of said Territory,

The President of the United States to the Marshal of said Territory,
greeting : ‘ ‘ ’

You are hereby commanded to seize, and into your possession
take, the American schooner called the Marino, now riding at an«
chor in the port of Mobile, in said Terrvitory. together with her tac-
kle, apparel, and furniture and the said cargo found on board of her,
consisting of the following goods, wares, and merchandise, viz* 44
hogsheads of molasses. 18 hogsheads of sugar, 25 boxes of sugar, 90
boxes of segars, fruits, straw hats, and baskets, 2 boxes of sugar,
1 barrel of coffee, 1 keg of olives, 2 jars do. ship stores, and other
articles ; also, ninecteen negro slaves which were imported in the
said schooner Marino. contrary. as is alleged to the laws of the
United States. And you are hercby authorized. emnpowered, and
strictly enjoined peremptorily to cite and admonish all persons
whatsoever, having, or pretonding to have. any right. title, interest,
or claim in or to the said schooner Marino, her tackle. apparel, and
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furuiture, and the cargo found on board of her. and slaves litelled in
i satd Courty fora beeach of the Taws of e United States afore.
said. to be and appear before the honorable the General Court of the
Alubama Territory. to be holden at the town of St. Stephens. in the
Court [county] of Washington, in said Territory, on the first Monday.
of July, in the year one thou-and eight hundred and eighteen; and}
whatsoever you shall do in the premises, you shall duly certify’
unto the Judges aforesaid, at the time and place aforesaid, to-
gether with these presents.

Witness the Honorable Harry Toulmin, Senior Judge of our said
Court, the first Monday of January, in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and cighteen, and of the Indepcndcnce of the
United States the forty- -second ycar.

Issued 16th June, 1818. ' s
Attest, F. I1I. GAINES, D. C. G. C.
Received 15th June, 1818, and executed the 18th, on the enclosel

memorandum of goods and schooner.
J. P. KENNEDY, ..

GENERAL CgURT.
Tue Usvreo StaTes, } In the General Court of the Alabanma

o Territory of the Admiralty.

Schooner Marino aowd curgo,

Unto the said Court comes William H. Robertson and Asahel
Gross, by David Rusty their proctor, and claims the schooner Ma-
rina her tackles apparel. and turniture. and merchandise and cargn
found.on bourd of said schooner, and mentioned in said libel of the
United States i this behalf, filed as his own lawful property, and
denying all and sivgnlar the allegations in the said libel of the
United States mnt.nmd they aver that the said schooner, her tac-
Kl apparel, furniture, and merchandise. and cargo found on board
of said schooner, is not forfeited to the United bultvs fim any such
cause a8 is-in the said libel ulleged, aud prays that the samme may be
restored to !nm with costs, &c.

DAYID RUST, Proctor.

William H. Rebertson, the claimant in this case, being sworn, de-
poses and says, that the facts set forth in foregoing claim are troe.
WILLIAM . ROBERTSON.

Sworn to in open Court, this §th June, 1321,
R. €. LANE. (70,
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01 the ter of July, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight bun-
dred and eighteen,

To the Honorable the Judge of the General Court of the Alabama
o Territory, in admiralty sitting:
... The libel of Francis Barrias, Ignatius Ralderos, Diego Crispo,
‘and Henry Mitchclet, all and each of them subjects of the King of
. Spain, residing iu the town of Pensacola, in the province of West
Florida, a port of the dominion of the King of Spain, most respect-
fully alleges. propounds, and States, that your ——-—— on or about
the third day of June, in the year of Christ one thousand eight hun-
dred and cighteen, in and on board a certain American schooner
called the Marino, nineteen negro slaves, to wit: the said Francis
‘Barrias onc uegro slave, the said Ignztius Balderos two negro slaves,
the said Diego Crispo twelve negro slaves. and the said Henry
Mitcheict, four negro slaves. the true, lawful, and bona fide pro-
perty of yeur libellants, to be transported in and on board the
said schooner to Pensacola, in the province of West Flnrida, from
the port of Havana, in the island of Cuba, a port of the dominions of
the Kiny of Spain, where the said schooner then was, and both of
which places of shipment and delivery were then and now are pro-
vinces, colonies, ur dependencies of the king of Spain aforesaid. and
that the said schooner did provide, [proceed,] on his said voyage, with
the said negroes on board, with thie intention to Jand and deliver the
sames at Peusacola aloresaid to your ——— according to the under-
tuking and agreement of the master of the said vessel ; that, upon the
arrival of the said schooner at the port of Pensacola aforesaid, the same
was occupied by the military forces of the United States, by virtue
f certain articles of capitulation with the inhabitants and forces of
ihe King of Spain; that the said schooner. with the said nincteen
negroes on board, were then and there, in the harbor of Pensacola,
illegally and torcibly seized and taken by the force and power of the
officers, crew, and guns of the United States ketch Surprise, Licutes
nant Isaac McKeever. Commaader, and sent into the port of Mobile,
in the Alabama ‘Lerritory, in the LUunited States, where the said ves-
sl and the said negroes now arc in custody of the Marshal of the
Court, and praceeding instituted against them in the honorable
Court for condemnation, all which your libellants expressly allege
is contrary to the laws of nations aud of the United States; where-
fore, they pray that admiralty process may issuc against the said
nineteen negroes, and that the usual monition may issue, and that
they may be decreed to be returned to them with costs, &e,
D. RUST, Proclor.

Let admiralty px‘occss'issuc, oth July, 1818,
HARRY TOULMIN..L A T.
. Y. WEBB, J. 4. T

fssned I0th Awgust, 1318, ‘
FoUWL GAINES Do e e
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Jlabama Terrilory of the United States General. Courl.

‘The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Tex-
ritory, greeting: -

Whereas nineteen African negroes. found on board the American
schooner called the Marino, have been libelled in the said Court fora
violation of the laws of the Uunited States, and have been seized and
by you taken into possession as liable to condemnation : and whereas
Francis Barrias, Ignacius Balderos, Diego Crisps. and Henry
Mitchelet, subjects of the King of Spain, residing i the town of
Pensacola, in the province of West Florida, a part of the dominions
of the King of Spain, have claimed the said nineteen nezroes as be-
ing their true, lawful, and bona fide property, and praying that the
same may be restored: you are, therefore. commanticd and strictly
enjoined to cite and admonish all persons having, o pretending to
have. any interest in the condemnation of the aforesaid nineteen At
rican negroes, to be and appear before the General Court uf thie Sla-
bama Territory, to be holden in the town of 8t. Stephen’s an the first
Monday of January next, to shew cause to the said Court, when in
session, if any they have or can, why the aforesaid nincteen Afvican
negroes shonld not be restored to the said Francis Barvias, Ignatias
Balderos. Diego Crispo, and Henry Mitchelet; and whatsoever you
shall do in the premises, you shall duly certify under your hand and
seal to said Court when in sesgion,

Witness the Hon. Harry Toulmin, Esq. Senior Judge of our said
Court, the first Monday in July. in the year of our Lord one thou-
sand cight hundred and eighteen, and of the ~overcignty and indepen-
dence ot the United States of America the forty-third ycar.

Issued 29th August, 1818,
AttCSt- Fl ]iv GJ\INES, I)- C’- Go CO

Advertised, J. HANES, Marshal,

General Court of the dlabama Territory, July Term, 1818,

Ux1TED STATES, ?
v S. -

Schr. Marino and cargo, J
Ordered. that Commissions do issue to take depositions in the Ha-
vana, to be directed to Messrs. Gray and John Murdock. and in
Pensacola, to be directed to General Gaines. Colonel King. and Cap-
tain Call, or cither of them, and the said depositions be taken as evi-
dence, as well of the cases of the United States against the said ves-
scls and cargoes. as in the several lihels for restitution, and the ne-
groes un board said vessel ; and that the vessele and cargoes in the
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cares be delizeved to the chidmants on board, wnd seeuriiy, to be ap.
proved by the Comrte being entered o in the apprinsed vadue
thereof, conditioned to have the pro,eety forthooming o abide the
judgment of the Court,

Ordered, that =amuel H. Garrow. Lewis Judson, David Files,
John W, Simonton, J in Whitehead  and Jotham S. Patten, or any
four of them. David Files being ave, be acerpted as securities to the
the bonds to be giver 1o this order, and tiat Henrey Do Merrite
and Christopher S0 Stewart ve appointed appraisers of the vessels
and cargoes atoresaid,

Ordered, on the agreement ot the parties. that the one hundred and
seven negroes found on board the vessel Marmo and the schooners
Louisa and Constitution, and libelled in this Court, be placed in the
possession of James Calier, Benjamin S, Smoot, and David Files, on
their entering into bond in such amount, and with such security, as
may be approved and agreed upon by the parties, conditioned that
they have the suid negyees Jortheoming to abide the ordey and decree
of tihe court,

Whereas one hundred and seven African negroes have been brought
within the jurisdiction, aud placed in the custody. of this Court, as
being liable to forfeiture under the laws of the United States; and
whereas certain persons have claimed the said negrocs, and deny
their liability to forfeiture as aforesaid ; and whereas the said causes
in reference to the liability of said negroes to forfeiture, could not bo
decided at July term, 1818, of the Alabama General Court sitting
in admiralty, it was agreed, by and with the advice and consent of
the said Court, and of all the persons interested either in the seizure
of said negroes aforesaid, or those claiming restitution of the same,
that the said negroes be delivered to some responsible persons, to be
almitted by the said Court aferesaid, for safe keeping, until the Court
aforesaid or their officers shall demand the same, when the said ne-
groes are to be returned into the custody of the Court aforesaid, to
.abide their decision in the premises ; all casualties in refevence to the
said negroes to be cxcepted from the liability of the said respensible
persons.

Whereupion James Caller, David Files. and Benjamin S. Smoat.
came into court, being the persons agreed upon, by the parties inte-
rested aforesaid, by consent of the court aforesaid, and stipulated, as
viell to all the parties interested, as to the court afuresaid, to take
pussession of the negroes aforesaid, to keep them well, and return
ther unto this court. when demanded by the said court. [free] from
all expense to any party concerned, under the penalty of one hundred
thousand dollars, to be levied of the goolds and chattels, lands and
tencments, it these should make defauit in the stipulation herein mens
“Innedh.
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Valuation of the Schooner Marino and cargo, appraised.b
pher S. Stewart, D. Duvall, and Henry V. Mg

Schooner, valued at nine hondred dollars, -

6 Roxcs brown sugar, 2,592 Ibs. at 7 cts. -
19 do white do 7,614 lbs.at10cts. -
44 Hogsheads of molasses. 4,479 gals. at 40 cts.

18 do Muscovady sugar, 15.693 lbs. at 8 cig.
72 quarter boxes segars, Spauish, at 82 50 -
2 half boxes do do 5 -
3 whole boxes do do 10 -
83 gentlemen’s chip hats, at 50 cts. - -
3 large brimmed do  at 81 - -
22 Palmetto baskets, at 63 cts, - -

Sales of fruits, by the marshal, not returned. ,

The above valuation, exclusive of dutics, filed 50th July, 1818,
CHRISTOPHER 8. STEWART.
D. DUVALL. ’
HENRY D. MERRITT.

F. 0. Gamves, D. C. G. C.

Know all men by these nreseats, that we, Wm. II. Robertson, Da-
vid Files, Jotham 8. Pat'en, John W. Simonton, and Samuel H.
Garrow, are held and &--aly hound unto the United States of Ame-
rica in the sum of ten thousand two hundred and eighteen dollars, to
be paid to the said United States, for the payment of which, well and
truly to te made, we bind ourselves, and each of our heirs, executors,
and administrators, jointly, and severally, firmly. by these presents.
Sealed with our seals, and dated this —— day of July, in the year of
our Lord one thousand eight bundred and eighteen.

Wiereas a libel hath been filed in the General Court of the Alaba-
ma territory, sitting in St. Stephen’s, in admiralty, on the —— day
of ——, in the year of our Lord one thousand cight hundred and
eighteen, by William Crawford. attorney of the said United States
for the Alabama ferritory, in behalf of the said United States, against
a certain schooner, or vessel, called the Marino, her tackle, apparel,
and {urniture, and the goods, wares, and merchandise, composiug the
cargo of said schooncer, stating and alleging that. forthe reasons and
causes specified in the said libel, the said schooner or vessel, her
tackle, her apparel, and furniture, and her cargo aforesaid. have been
seized and become forfeited to the use of the said United States, and
praying that the same may be condemued as f{orfeited to the use of
the said United States.  And whercas the -aid schooner or vessel,
her tackle, apparcl, and furniture, and hee cargo aforeraid, have
been attached, by the process of the court aforesaid, in pursuance of
the said libel, and are now in custody by virtue thereof.
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And whereas the said schooner, her tackle, apparel, and furniture,
together with the cargo, hath been, by order of the court aforesaid,
valued by appraisers, approved by the court aforesaid, to wit' Henry
D. Merritt, D. Duvall. and Christopher S, Stewart at five thou.
sand one hundred and nine dollars seventy-five cents:  And whereas
the said court aforesaid hath ordeved the said conrt [ Schr, ] aforesaid,
ber tackle, apparel. and furniture, and cargo aforesaid to be bonded at
the appraised value thereof, and delivered to the said William H. Ro.
bertson and Asahel Gross, who claims the same,

Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that, if the
above bounder William H. Robertson, David Files, Jotham 8. Pat-
ten. J. W. Siimonton, and Samuel H. Garvow, or either of them, or
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall pay unto the said
court aforesaid for the use of the said United States, the said sum of
five thousand oue bundred and nine dollars, being the sum and ap-
praised value aforesaid, of the said schooner or vessel, called the
Masney her tackle, apparel. and furniture, and the cargo aforesaid,
in case the said schooner or vessel, her tackle, apparel, and furni-
tur-. and her cargo aforesaid, shall, by the sentence and decree of the
said court aforesaid. be adjudged to be forfeited or condemuned to the
use of the said United States. within twenty days after sentence and
decree shall be pronounced : and if the said schooner or vessel, her
tackle. apparel, and turniture, and her cargo aforesaid, shall be ac-
quitted, or if « decree in the said cowrt, in favor of the claimants, then,
and in such case, if the above bounden Wm. H, Robertson. David
Files, Jotham 3. Patten. J. W Simonton. and Samucl H. Garrow,
or either of them or either of their heirs. executors, or admiuistra- -
tors, shall, within twenty days after the seutence and Jecree shali be
pronounced. pay unto the said court aforesaid, or to the officers theve-
of, respectively. all such costg and charges as shall, in thatcase, be tax.
ed and allowed, by the said court aforesaid, 1o the said officers there-
of ; and if the said claimants shall, in all things. abide and perform
such decree as shall be made by the court aforesaid, in the said cause,
or respecting the premises, then this ohligation shall be void, other-
wise the same shall be and remain in full force and virtue,

WM. H. ROBERT:ON.
DAVID F.LEx.
JOTHAM 8 PATTEN,
J. W, SIMONTON,

8. H. GARROW,

Signed, sealed, and delivered, in the presence of

J. JUDSON.
W. Y. LEWIS,
Filed s0th July. 1818.
F. H. GAINES, D. ¢k

16
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Alabama Tervitory of the United States,

The President of the United States to the Marshal of the said Terri-
tory, greeting:

Whereas, at a General Court, holden for said territory, in the
town of 8t. Stephen®s, on the first Monday of July, 1818, it was or-
dered that the vessel Mavino, and cargo, the schooner Louisa and
cargo. and the schoouer Constitntion and cargo. should be delivered
to the claimants of the same on their entering into bond. in the ap-
praised value thereof, with Samuel H. Garrow, Lewis Judson, Da-
vid Files, John W, Simonton. John Whitehead, and Jotham 8. Pat-
ten. or any four of them, David Files being one, as securities for the
fortheoming of the vessels and cargoes, to abide the order and decree
of the said court. And whereas an appraisement, on oath. of tie va-
- Juatioi of the vessel Marino and cargo has been filed, and bond, in
donble the amount thereof, conditioned as aforesaid, entered into, and
filed in the clerk®s oftice of  the said court, with Duvid Files, Jotham
S. Patten, J. W, Simonton, and Samuel B, Garrow as scecurities;
you are therefore commanded that y- u deliver unto William . Ro-
bertson and Asahel Gross, the said vessel, called the Mavino, her
tackle, apparel. and the cargo, on board the same. consisting of

6 boxes of brown sugar. weight 2,592 lbs,
1 do white sugar. do 7,644
44 hogsheads of molasses, containing 4.474 gallons
18 hagsheads Muscovado sugar, 3,693 lbs.
72 quarter boxes Spanish segars
half boxes of the same
whale boxes of the same
gentlemen’®s chip hats
large brimmed do  and
22 Palmetto baskets
together with the proceeds of the sale of the {ruits, being a part of the
said cargo, which said vessel, called the Marino, and cargo aforesaid,
by our writ, you have seized and taken into your possession for a vi-
olation of the laws of the United States. as by theirlibel we are given
to understand  And whatsoever you shall do in the premises, you
shall certify to our judges of the said court, at the court to be iolden
for said territory, in the town of St. Stephen’s, on the first Monday of
January next. v ‘

Witness, the Honorable Harry Toulmin, Esq. Senior Judge of said
- Court, the first Monday of July, A. D. 1818, and 45d year of Ameri-
can independeuce.  Issued 31st July, 1818,

‘ - F. H. GAINES, D. C. 6. C.

-

W W WY

3

Received the 6th August, 1818,
J. P. KENNEDY, D. Marshal.

Delivered agrecable to the within order.
‘ © J..P. KENNEDY, . 5.
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District Courl of the Tnited States for the Alabama Dislrict, February
Term, 1821,

VS,

Tue UN1TED STATES
Schooner Marino and Cargo. &

These cases are continued by the consent of the capters and claim-
ants 3 and the slaves in the cases of the Marino and Louisa are to be
delivered fo John Juinn, he giving bond for the sume [sale] keeping
and forthcoming of the said negroes, agreeably to the arder of the
said court, for their good treatment, and cave of their health, in
the sum of twelve thousand dollars, for the slaves iwported in the
Marino, and four thousand dollars for the case of the Louisa @ and
the court accept. as security, in both cases, Robertson and Barne
well, v W, and J. Armstrong. and Henry V. Chamberlaing and
in the case of the Constitution and siaves. bouds, to the amount of
fifty thousand dollars, are to be given and the court accept of the fol-
lowing persons as the securities off George M. Brooke, the person to
whown the negroes are to be honded, viz: Jolm F. Everitt, Capt. A.
L. Sands, W, Spencer, Richard B. Owen, George W. Owen. £,
Montgomery. A. Hollinger, B. 8. Smoot, Webster and Griswold,
Gilbert C. Russell, and Turner Stark., And it is ordered by the
court, that the marshal of the district immediately take all the ne-
groes into possession until the bonds are regularly given.

|

VS,
The Schooner Marino and Cargo.
June Term, 1821, continued, by consent, until the January Term,
1822,

"The UNITED STATES }

Vs, January Term, 1842.

Sciinoner Marino and Cargo.

And now comes here William H. Robertson, by Samuel Acre, his
proctor. and claims the schooner Marino, her tackle, apparel, ard
furniture, aud cargo. and for his claim, and answer unto the said ii-
bel, he saith. that the said schooner and the said cargo ave the bona
fide property of this claimant and Asahel Gross; that, on or about
the 10th day of June. 1818. the said schooner sailed from the port of
Havana. in the Island of Cuba. in the dominions of the King of
Spain, bound for the port of Pensacola. in the province of West Floa
rida, then a port belonging to the King of Spain. "Uhis claimant fur-
ther ausweping, saith, thaty while prosccuting the voyage aforesaid,

The UNITED STATES }
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and after the arvival of the said schooner in the Bay of Pensacolg,
within the ferritorial jurisdiction of the King of Spain and while at
anchor under the guns of the Fort of the Barra-cas belonging to the
King of Spain aforesaid, and within the harbor of Pensacola afure-
saitd was forcibly seized and taken possession of. by the navy of the
United States, between whom and the King of Spain, there was and
still is. peace and amity, and by the Com iander of the gun-vessel
keteh Surprize, sent into the o2 i of Mobile within the jurisdictional
and tervitorial limits of the United States.  And this claimant fur.
ther answering saith. that the negroes found on board of said
schiooner. were brought by her from the said port of [Havana, in the
island of Cuba. in the dominions of the King of Spain aforesaid. and
were taken on board as passesgers, the property of Spanish subjects
residing in Pensacola and with intent to land them in Pensacola
aforesaid, and not within any port or place of the United States. or
the territories thereol'; and that the said schooner and cargo are not
forfeited under any of the laws of the United States.  Whereof the
said Williuw L. Robertson doth ¢laim the said schooner, her tackle,
apparel. and furniture, and cargo. as the bona tide property of hLim-
seit and Asahel Gross aforesaid and prays that the same may be re-
gtored - and that they may have their costs in this matter anstained,
and their damages occeasioned by the seizure and detention of the
said schuoner su unlawfully made to them, decreed.
SAMUEL ACRE. Proctor
Sur Cluimant,

Wi, H. ROBERTSON.

Sworn and subscribed to in open Court. 14th fanuary, 1872,
R. C. LANE, Clerk.

Monday, January 14, 182-.

United States
TS,
Schr, Marino and cargo.
Francis Barrias. Ignatius)
Balderos Diego Crispo, |

Henry Mitchelet, >
s |
Thirteen Negroes.  J

It is admitted by the Attorney for the captors. as well as for thc
claimants, +-'T'hat the Lounisa and Constitufion cleared out from
¢ N.w Orleans and the Marino from Mobile,all for the port of Ha-
ovana s that they were American schooners, with American vegise
» ters 3 that the Louisa and Constitution were cleared from the lat-
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sé ter port for New Ovleans, and the Marino for Mobile. at the dif-
¢ ferent periods mentioned in the commission sent to favana viz ;
¢+ the Marine, on the 2d June, 1818 ; the Constitution, on or about
“the 18h June, 18183 and the Louisa. on the 10th June 1818, and
“ were captured at the different periods mentioned in the libels. that
“ the different vessels had on board the number of slaves mentioned
¢ in the libels. at the time of capture. The Marino was captured
¢ within une and a half miles of the Barrancas, inside of the bar. m
- the harbor of Pensacola, by the United States” ketch Surprize,
“ Capt. McKeever. 'The Louisa was captured outside of the bar at
“ Pensacola 3 was standing in, but hove to,  The Constitution was
“captared under the guns of Fort Barrancas, within the bar, by
“ Col. George M. Brooke, of the United States” Avmy,

¢ That Pensacola was. at the tune, in the possession of the Ameri-
écan troops. under the command of Gen. Jackson ; and that the
¢ American flag was flving at the time,

¢ 'That the Constitution was hoarded off Mobile Point, on her way
“to Mubile. by Curtis Lewis Commander of the revenue boat ; that,
‘*at the time he boarded her, Capt. Sands was on board as agent of
% the captors ; that he (€. Lewis) remained on board until she arriv-
“ed in pors, and reparted her to the Collector of the port, as being
“ captured by him; that he reported the same to the District Attop-
*ney, but not until Col. Broote had veported Ler as captured by
“him s that M. Walden entered the carge at the Custom House,
“and was Supercargo of the Counstitution,
“‘That the libellants for vestitution and claimants. offered, as evi-
dence. the veturns of the com:nission sent to Havana  which was
admitted subject to the exception of its being issued and signed by
a Pepuly Cierke in all the cases, as well the vessels and cargoes
+ as the staves and libels, for restitution.

«That the commission was opened in open court; the. Mr. Vin-
v cent yray is a merchant in the Havana : that he was = commercial
w6 gzent of the person intended for the commission to issue to ; that
¢« the cargo of the Marino was on bosrd, aud that the register of the
¢ vessel was in the name of Willimin H. Robertson and Asahel
« Gross 3 that Wilifam [, Robertsou entered the cargo at the Cus.
¢ tom House, and honded the same; that the register of the Louisa
¢ was in the name of Samuel Paxton.”

Autonio Fuche being sworn, says that he lived under the Govern-
ment of Spain from the time of the arvival of O’Reilly, until the
country was taken pogsession of by the Americans s that he knows
that slavery is permitted in Spain, but does not know whether it is
by any particular ordinance, or whether it is by custom.

Don Miguel Eslava, being sworn. says that slavery is permitfed
in the island of Cuba. but dues not know witether it is by any par
ticular ordinance, ov whether it is by cusiom.

.
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Aranamy TERrITORY OF THE UNITED STATES,
General Conrt,

"The President of the United States to Messrs. Gray and Johin Mur-
dock. Esqrs. Greeting : ‘

Know ye that we, repe ang special trust and confidence in your
fidelity and pradent civcumspection. do hereby authorize aud em-
power you, that, at such time and place as you may appoint. you
arefully and diligently examine, agreeably to the annexed inter-
rogaturies, such persons, they being first cautioned and swarn. or
adtivaed, to tell the whole truth, as you may call before you for that
purpose. and sich examination and depositions by you taken. yow arve
to send seaied up under your seals. to the Honorable the Judges of
the Geueral Court of this said Ferritory, at the court to be holden
o the first Monday of Januarvy next, together with this writ.

Witness the ou. Harry ‘Poulmin, Esiq. senior Judge of our szil
coitrt, the first Mouday of July. in the year of our Lord one thou-
sand cight hundeed and eighteen, and the forty-third year of the
sove.cignty and indepenidence of the United States of America.

Lssued suth July, 1518,

¥, II. GAINES, D. C. G. C.

Interrogatorirs to he administered to witnesses in behall of the
claimants and libellers in the fuliowing cases. to wits
Arapama Geserat CourT.
In Admirally.

The United StatesY  The Tuited StatesY)  The United States
' : | i

s, L TS, TS, L
Schr. Marvino and ¢ Schr. Louisa and F Schr. Constitation J

cargo. J cargo, J and cargo,

Henry Mitchelet, Joseph Noviaga, David Nagle. 7
Diego Crispo, Francis Bonal, L Antotio Frias, '>
Francis Barrias, | s, 8. {
Ignatius Balde- >  Six Negroes. _J Eighty-two Negroes. J
ros,

TS

Nineteen Negroes. J
Interrogatories.

First. Do you know David Nagle. Antonio Frias. Diego Cris-
po, Francis Bonal, Lgnatius Balderos, Joseph Noriago. Francis
Barrias, and Henry Mitchelet, parties in the above suits. or any of
them ?

Second.  Where do they generally reside ; are they. or are they
not, subjects of His Catholic Majesty the King of Spain, or mer-
chants, or persons residing within bis dominiens
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%ird, Have you. or have you not, any knowledge of the said
David Nagle baving shipped sowe time in the month of June, 1318,
at the port of Havana tifteen Afriean negroes on board the Constitu-
tion. to be transported to the port of Vensacola? Were the said ne-
groes the property of the said David Nagle. and bona fide ?

Fourth, Have yeu any knowledge of the said Antonio ¥rias hav.
ing shipped on board the schooner Constitution sixty-nine negroes at
Havaua aloresaid. about the time aforesaid  to be delivered at Pen-
sacola aferesaid. and were they the veal and bona fide property of the
said Frias.

Fifih,  tlave you any knowledge of the suid Francis Bonal, and
the saidd Joseph Norviago. or some person or persons for them, having
shipped on board the Awerican schooner Louisa. some time in the
saith mouth of June at the port of Havaoa aforesaid. the said Fian-
cis Sonal tour negroes, and the samd Joseph Noviago two negroes ?
and were they the true and bona fide property of ihie said Bonal and
Noriago -

Sixth.  ave yon any kuaowledge of the said Mitchelet, the said
Diego Crispo Francis Burrias. and Iguatius Balderus, or some per-
son or persons for thew Laving, sowe time in said month of Juue,
at Havana afuresaid. suipped on board the Amevican schooner Ma-
rino nineteen negroes, that is to say. the said Diego Crispo twelve
negroes., the said Heary Mitchelet four negroes, the said EFrancis
Barrias one negro. and the said Ignativs Balderos two negrees, to
be transported and delivered at the port of Pensacola 7 and were the
said negroes severally the property of the persouns above named ?

Seventh, Were the negrues mentioned in the several forcgoing
interrogataries purchased by the séveral persons therein set forth as
owners in Havana, to your knowledge, or by some persons for then,
and in pursurace of their orders and instructions, and were they so
shipped to be delivered to them, or their order, at Pensacola

Lighth., Have you any knowledge of the voyage upon which the
aforementioned schooners Constitution. Louvisa. and BMarino, sailed
from the Port of Havana? Was it not understood between the Masters
or persons having charge of the said vessels, the said owners ov
shippers, that they should cail or tonch at the port of Pensacola
aforesaid, and land and deliver the saild negroes to the said owners,
or their order, and was there not an ag.cement to that effect?

JNVinth,  Whether, at the time of the aforesaid shipment of negroes
took place, a preference was not given to shipping under the Auvieri-
can fla;: ~ *he Spanish. in consequence of the gicat danger appre-
hended vf capture by the Insurgent privateers?

Tenth,  Whether, at the time that the said schooners aforesaid
sailed from the port of Havana, it was knowa, or at jeast publicly
known, that the American Congress had passed anact, entitled ¢ An
act in addition to an act to prohibit the introdaction of’ slaves into
any port or place within the jurisdiction «f the United States, from
and after the first day of January, in the year of our Lord one theu-
sand eight hundred and ecight. and to repeal certain parts of the
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same,’” passed the 20th day of April. 1818, or whethier, at the time
the said schooners aforesaid sailed frow the port of Havana., it was
knowrn, or at least publicly so. that the United States’ troops, under
the commaud of Gen. Jackson, were in possession of the towa of
Penyacola? v

11th. o you or do you not know any thing in reference to the
cargoces shipped on board either of the waid schooners Mavino, Louisa,
and Constitution, «t the port of Havana, at the time aforesaid, to wit:
during the month of June last, -nd to whom did they beiong, and in
what proportions. and tor what ports were they shipped, and by whom
were they shipped? :

12th, Do you or do you not know any thing in reference to- the
schoouers aforesaid, the negroes ov hoard, and their respective cara
goes, that will be for the henelit of cither the United States, the cap-
tors, claimants. or libellants aforesaid, and if so declare it?

Filed s0th July, 1818. F. H. GAINES, 1. C.

Alehaa Ferritory of the United States :

. b eancis i Gaines, Deputy Clerk of the General Court of said
Teceritory, do certify that the foregoing pages, numbered 1, 2, 5. 4, 5,
6, contain a frue copy of interrogatories nowon file in the Clerk's of-
fice of said Court.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and af-
fixed my private scal, (having no seal of office) at St,

[x. 8] Stephen’s, on the 30tk day of July, in the year of our

Lord ene thousand eight bundred and eighteen., and the
foriy-third year ol the sovereignty and independence of
the United States of A nerica,

‘ ¥. L. GAINES, D. C, Gen. Court.

ma——— ——

Bepositions of witnesses praduced, sworn, and examined, on the an-
nexed interrogatories, on the 18th day of Uctober, in the year of
ous Lord one thousand eight hundred and cighteen, by virtue of a
cominision issued out of the General Court of the Alabama 'Territo-
Ty, to us directed, for the examination of witnesses in a certain
cause tnere pending, and #t issue, between the United States, plain-
tiffs, and schooner Constitution, and those claiming her cargo
aud Atrican slaves on board, defendants, on the part of the de-
fendants, to wit :

Don Franciseo Alvarez, of the city of Havana, Despatch Clerk in
the House of Don Antonio de Frias, he the said Frias being in Ku-
rope. and his brether and attorney, Don Nicholas, being iv: the inte-
rior, heing produced. sworn, ami examined. on behalf of the defend-
ants, on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and declave
as foilows:

1st. To the first interrogatory he saith, that he knows Don David
Nagle and Don Anfonio de Frias, having lived as a Clerk in the
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house of the latter, for upwards of cight years: but is not acquainted
with the other parties named in this interrogatory,

2d. To the second interrogutory he saith, that Don David Nagle
and Don Antonio de Frius, are vesident merchants in this city, and
subjects of his Catholic Majesty.

sd. "t'o the third intervogatory he suith, that Don David Nagle, or
somr person for him, did ship a number of African negroes on board
the Americazn schooner Constitutior, bound to Pensacola, and, a part,
thereof, twelve in number. were purchased at the Barracon of Gon
Antonio de Frias, No 15, and he remembers to have seen a Clerk of
the said Nagle. or Ma. Mitchell. in the oflice of the Sceretary of this
Governinent, obtaining a passport for said negroes, butas te the num-
ber he knoweth not. '

4th. T'o this interrogatory he saith, to his knowledge thove were
shipped on board the American schooner Constitution, by the House of
Don Antonio de Frias, in the month of June last, sixty-nine Afvican
negroes, as he understood, for account, as expressed in the letter and
passport here annexed, and marked A and B: which negroes were
actually imported by thesaid Antonio de Frias, from the coast of Af-
rica, in the schooner called the Volorado, and re-shipped from the Bar-
racon of said Frias, No. 151 he the said deponent having obtained the
passport for the re-shipment of the said negroes, from the Captain
General, for account of the said Frias.

othe Tothe fifth interrogaiory he saith, that he hath no knowledge
o' the shipment mentioned in this intervogatory.

6th. 'To the Gth interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatery,

7th. To the seventh interrogatory he saith, that twelve of the ne-
groes mentioned in the passport, obtained from the Captain General,
i the 1~we of David Nagle, hercto annexed, marked C, were pue-
chased from Barracon. No. 13, of Don Antonio de Frias, and shipped
on hoard said schooner Constitution, with sixty-nine shipped from
said Barracon, on board said schooner Coustitution, by sail Frias,
as expressed in his letter hereto annexed, marked A.

8th, T'o the eighth interrogatory he saith, that the Captain of the
Constitution received the aforementioned sixty-nine African negrocs,
as well as others shipped on board the said vessel, on the express con-
dition as he understands, that he would land them in Pensacola, at
which port he was to touch on his voyage to New Orleans,

9th. T'o the ninth interrogatory he saith, that as Insurgent priva-
teers were most constantly off this port. Matanzas, and Mariel, the
preference was notonly given to the transportation of negroes in Ame-
vican vessels {rom hence, but that no person would risk a negro on
board a Spanish vessel, for any place, except a vessel of war.

10th. T'o the tenth interrogatory he saith, that he never heard of the
art of Congress of the 20th of April. 1818 3 but that he had understood
ior some years past, that neither African or any other slaves could
be introduced into the Cnited Staies, or into the tervitovies thereofs
under any circumstances,  And it was notuntil the 26th day of June

11
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Tast past. some days after the departure of ihe schooner Constitutioy,
that information was received, by the arrival of the schooner Washing-
ton, a flag of truce, having troops on board, from Pensacola, of the
capture and occupation of Pensacola, by the troops under the command
of General Jackson.

11th. 'To this interrogatory he saith, that he has no other know-
edge of the negroes mentioned in the interrogatory than that already
stated,, ‘

12th. 'To this inferrogatory he saith, that he knows no other mat.
fer or thing, respecting the African negroes mentioned in the preced.
ing interrogatories, which can be useful to the claimants, defendants,
or w ilie United States,

Hacana 1310 Oclober,

FRANCISCO ALVAREZ.
Vincent Guay,
Joux Mrrpock,

Don Domingo Rodriguey, of the City of Havana, Clerk, aged 24
years, being produced. sworn, and examined, in behalf of the defend.
ants, on the title of these depositions named, doth depose and declare
as follows, viz :

ist. To the first interroga’ ey he saith, that he knows David Na-
gle. Antonio de EFeias, Dicgo Crispo, and Ignacio Balderos, but is
not acquainted with the other parties named in this interrogatory.

ad, To the serond interrogatory he saith, that David Nagle, An.
tonio de Frias, and Ignacio Balderos, reside in this city. and he un.
derstands that Dicgo Crispo resides in Pensacola, and that they are
all subjects of his Catholic Mujesty.

sd. To the thied interrogaiory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in this interrogatory.

41he To the fourth interrogatory he saith, that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in thisinterrogatory, further than by vejport,
that the said Frics had about thut time shipped a parcel of negroes for
one of the Floridas,

5th. "To the fitih inferrogatory he saithe that he has no knowledge
of the shipment mentioned in the interrogatory,

Gth, To the sixth interragatory he saith, that he has knowledge
of the purchase and shipment of fourteen negroes, by Diego Crispo,
and Tanacio Baldereos, on board the schooner Marino, bound to Pen-
sac da ¢ that is to say. twelve hy Diego Crispo, and two by Ignacio
Balderos  and he wnlerstood from Dicgo Crispo, that he was about
to purchase forr or five negreoes more ior his friend in Pensacola, and
ship the same in the vesse! Marino,

Tthe To the seventh interrogatory lie saith, that he has no other
knowledge of the purchiue of the negroes, mentioned in the foregoing
interrogatories, thun stated in the preceding answers,

8th. To the righth interrogatory he saith, that he inderstood that
the Mavino was 10 enter into the port of Pensacola, and there land the
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negrocs, shipped on board at this port; but as to the other two
gchoovers, mentioned in this intervogatory, he hag no knowleidge of
their destination,

9th, To the ninth interrogatory he saith, that as Insurgent priva-
teers were numerons in these seas, the preference was given to Ame.
vican vesels, for the tramsportation of every species of property, as
nothing was consideved sate on board oft Spanish vessels.

1oth, Lo the tenth nm‘nusr,.nmy he saith, that he never heard of
the act of Congiess mentioned in the intervogatory : and it was not
antil after the arrival of the schoorier W uhm,s,ton. flag of teuce, who
arvived tere late in June, last past. with troops on board, after tie
departure of the Merinn, that information was received of the seizurve
and occupatiuu ol Pensacola, by the troops under the command of
General Jackson,

tith. To this interrogatory he saith, that he has no other know-
ledge of the negroes mentioned in the interrogatory, than already
stated.

12th. To the twelfth interrogatory he saith, that he knows no cther
matter or thing, rquv(‘linq; the Alrican vegroes, mentioned in the pre-
ceding intervogatories, which can be usctul to the claimauts, defend-
ants, or to the “United States,

Havana, 15th October, 1818.

DOMINGO RODRIGUES.
VINCENT GRrAY,
Joux Mruepock,

Don Jose Antonio Vidal y Pasqual, of the city of Havzaa, mer-
chant, being produced, sworn and examined. in behalt of the defend-
ants. on the title of these depositions named doth depose and declare
as follows, viz : '

First. To the first interrogatory he saith that lie Knows all the
persons named in this interrogatory, except Henry Mitchelet, and
Ignucio Balderas.

Second, To the second interrogatory he saith that David Nagle,
and Antonio de I'rias, are merchants of this city, and the others men-
tioned in this interrogialory known to him in Pensacola, and subjects
of his Catholic M.u(n-t}.

Third, To the third interrogatory he saith that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment wentioned in this inter rogatory.

Fonrth, o the fourts intervogatory he saith “that fic has no know-
ledge of the shipment menticned in this interrogatory.

Kifth. To the @ifth interrogatory he saith that he purchased for Jo.
seph Noriago. ol Pensacola, two negroes from the Barracon, und
shipped tlwm on board the Americau schooner Louisa, under the care
of Francisco Bonal, some time in June last past for Pensacola, and
understood that there were other negroes shipped on board the same
vessel for Pensacola, but te whom they belonged he knoweth not.
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Sixth. T'o the sixth interrogatory he saith, that he has no know-
ledge of the shipment of negroes of board the Marino, mentioned in
the interrvogatory.

Seventh, To the seventh interrogatory he saith, that he purchased
the two negroes menitioned from Cuesta, Manzanual, and Brothers,
shipped them for account of Joseph Noriago. of Pensacola.

Eighth, 1o the eighth interrogatory he saith, that he has no know.
ledge of the voyages of the Constitution, nor Marino. but that had the
Louisa not been bound to Pensacola, ae should not have shipped the
negroes, which the captain thereot undertook to deliver in Pensacola,

Ninth. To the ninth interrogatory he saith that at the time the
aforementioned negroes were shipped it was not sale to ship any pro-
perty on board of Spanish vessels, on account o? the many Insurgent
privatecrs in these seas, consequently the preference was given to
American vessels,

Tenth, To the tenth interrogatory he saith, the hath no know.
ledge of the act of Congress mentioned in this interrogatory, but he
hag understood for some pears past that no negro slaves could be in-
troduced into the United States under any circumstances, and it was
not known here 1ill some days ofter the departure of the schooney
Louisa, that the troops under General Jackson had actually occupied
Pensacola,

Eleventh. To the eleventh Interrogatory he saith. that he knows

~nothing more respecting the negro cargoes of the vessels mentioned in
this interrogatory than already stated.

Twelfth, To the twelfth interrogatory he saith, that he knows no-
thing more respecting the cargoes of the afore-mentioned vessels,
which can be useful to the defendants, claimants, or to the Tuited

States.
JOSE ANT. VIDAL Y PASQUAL.
Vincent Grary, :
Jxo. Mcerbpock.
Havana, 130 Oclober, 1818,

A A,
Iubana, 15 de Junio, de 1818.

Muy Sen, mio y Amigo: He tomado la libertad de embarcar abor-
do de la Goleta Constitucion, su Capn. Don Henrique Peckham, & la
consignacion de V, sesenta y nueve negros bosales, y asi mismo he
sacado el pasaporte del Excelentisimo Sciior Capitan Gene al, conio
propiedad suya 4 fin de facilitar 1a entrada en esa.

Tengo hecha peticion a esta Sefior Intendente General para el paiio
de tierra que V. me tiene indicado sobre del Escambia, y concedido
que me sea no tendra dificultad en concurrir con lag miras de V. (con
alganas modificaciones.) pero trataré extensamentesobre este asunto
en otra co.ta seperada, limitandome en esta & suplicarle el pronto
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desembarce de los Esclavos, y sus amistosas atenciones 4 su descan-
$0. alojamiento en parage sano, vigilancia de su salud y alimento que
deve indispensablemente consistir en la mayor parte de arvoz.

Me prometo este gusto mas ampliamente por otra ocasion que deve
salir en breve, y me repito como siempre su alectisimo amigo y ser.
"idol"

Por mi hermans D. Antonio.
NICOLAS DE FRIAS,
A Dox Hexrique MITcHELET,
Del Comercio de Pensacola.

B‘
Huabuna, 13 de Junio, de 1818,

Concedo licentia & D. Antonio Frias. de esta comercio para que del
sargamento de negros Losales con que entré vicitamente, en este puerto
procedente de la Costa de Africa, la Goleta Espanola Valadora,
needa hacer 4-Panzacola la vemesa de sesenta y nueve de ellos al
cargy de M. Pachen para entragarlos & sue dueno M. Henrique Mit-
chelet, vecino de aquella plaza, segn. lo ha representudo en memorial
de este mes acreditando lo necesario en el asunto.

JUAN JUINN.

Don Jose Cien Fuegos Jovellanos Caso y Ramirez, Cuballere
Gran Cruz, de la real Militar Orden de S. Hermenigilde, condecora-
do con las del ejércits Asturiano y tercero de operaciones, Consejero
en el Supremo de la guerra, Teniente General de los reales cjerci-
tos, Gobernador de la plaza de la Habana. Capitan General de la
Isla de Cuba y de las dos Floridas. Presidente de la real Audiencia
que reside en la propia Isla. Juez de Alzadas del tribunal def real
Consulado de ella, y Presidente de la Junta Econdmica y de Gobier-
no del mismo, Subdelegado de la Superintendencia General de Cors
reos. Postas y estafetas, y Juez Protector de la real Compania de la
Habana, y de la renta de tobacos, &c. &c.

Concedo licencia & D, David Nagle. para que remita & Panzacola
trece negros bosales de la propiedad de Dceu Juan Ynerarity, resi-
dente en dicha plaza,

Habana, 12 de Junio, de 1818.

JUAN JUINN.
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District Court of the United States, January Term, 1822.

UNITED STATES }
"sl

Schrs, Marino and Louisa, their cargo and slaves.

Samuel Acre, Esq. moved to dismiss the libels agaiust these two
vessels and cargoes.

First, Because the libel concludes contrary to the form of the sta-
tute.

Sccoud, Because no admiralty process has issued. Which motion is
not sustained by the Court.

Tuesday January 17, 1822.

The United States
Schooner Marino apd cargo.
It is ordered and decreed, that the schooner Marino, her tackle,
apparel, and furniture, and cargo found on board at the time of sei-
zure, be decreed to be forfeited to the United States, and that the dis.
tribution thereof be reserved for the further order of this Court.

Francis Barrias,

Ignatius Balderos, l
Diego Crispo,

Henry Mitchelet, l>

zs.
Nineteen African Negroes. J

It is further stated, that the nineteen negro slaves be and remain
subject to the laws of the State of Alabama, and that the distribution
of said slaves be reserved for the further order of this Court.

From which said decree the claimants and libellants for restitution
prayed for and obtained an appeal to the Superior Court of the United
States.

I, Robert Carr Lane, Clerk of the District Court of the United
States for the Alubama District at Mabile. do hereby certify, that the
above and foregoing twenty eight pages contain a true copy of the re-
cord and proceedings had in the said Court in the case of the United
States vs. schooner Merino and Diego Crispo et al vs. nineteen ne-

roes.
s Given under my hand and seal of office this twenty-fourth day of
November, cighteen hundred and twenty-three.

ROBERT CARR LANE, Clerk



Amount of the several sums of money paid to the claimants of the cargo of the Schooner Louisa, the dates of paymends,
and the authority under which they have been made, under the act of the 3d of March, 1823,

DATE OF

PAYMENT. NAMES OF CLAIMANTS, AMOUNT.
1825.
Mach 8, | Joscph Noriega, for part of the cargo of the schoonev Lomsa, - . -1 1.352 00
¢é “ Francisco Bonal, for do. and for 4 negroces, - - - - 8,649 87
¢« ¢ | Henry Mitchelet, for 4 of the amount allowed for 19 negx oes, - - - 3,087 50
Dec'r 24, | Ignatio Balderos, do. do, - - - -1 85,087 50
Dollars | 16.156 37

All of which sumns were allowed under the authority of the Sccretary of the Treasury,

TrEAsURY DEPARTMENT,

Register's Office, April 17, 1826.

(William H. Crawford.)

JOSEPH NOURSE, Rcgister.
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